
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ZONING 
APPEALS OF HENRICO COUNTY, HELD IN THE COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATION BUILDING IN THE HENRICO COUNTY GOVERNMENT 
COMPLEX, ON THURSDAY, DECEMBER 21, 2006, AT 9:00 A.M., NOTICE 
HAVING BEEN PUBLISHED IN THE RICHMOND TIMES-DISPATCH 
NOVEMBER 30 AND DECEMBER 7, 2006. 
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Members Present: James W. Nunnally, Chairman 
 Richard Kirkland CBZA, Vice-Chairman 
 Elizabeth G. Dwyer  
 Helen E. Harris 
 R. A. Wright 
  
  
Also Present: David D. O’Kelly, Assistant Director of Planning 
 Benjamin Blankinship, Secretary 
 Paul Gidley, County Planner 
 Priscilla M. Parker, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Ladies and gentlemen, we welcome you to our 
December meeting. We wish you a merry Christmas and a happy New Year.  
Will you please stand and join us in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of Our 
Country.  Mr. Secretary, would you read the rules and procedures of the Board, 
please? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members of the Board, 
ladies and gentleman. The rules for this meeting are as follows.  As Secretary, I 
will announce each case and while I’m speaking, the applicant should come 
down to the podium. We will then ask everyone who intends to speak on that 
case to stand and be sworn in.  Then the applicant will give their testimony. Then 
anyone else who wishes to speak will be given the opportunity.  After everyone 
has spoken, the applicant and only the applicant will have an opportunity for 
rebuttal.  After hearing all of the evidence and asking questions, the Board will 
take the matter under advisement and they will render all of their decisions at the 
end of the meeting. If you wish to know their decision on a specific case, you can 
either stay until the end of the meeting or you can check the Planning 
Department website this afternoon; we update it about half an hour after the 
meeting ends, or you can call the Planning Department this afternoon.  This 
meeting is being tape recorded, so we’ll ask everyone who speaks to speak 
directly into the microphone on the podium. State your name and please spell 
your last name for us.  Finally, out in the foyer, there are two binders that contain 
the staff report for each case, including the conditions that have been 
recommended by the staff. You will be asked whether you agree to those 
conditions, so it’s important that you be familiar with them.   
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Mr. Nunnally - Mr. Blankinship, is there any withdrawals or deferrals? 36 
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Mr. Blankinship - No sir. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - All right, sir, thank you.  Call the first case please. 
 
A-44-2006 BRENDA Y. CORBETT requests a variance from 
Section 24-94 to build a one-family dwelling at 2380 Yarnell Road (Parcel 814-
697-7483), zoned A-1, Agricultural District (Varina). The lot width requirement is 
not met. The applicant has 140 feet lot width, where the Code requires 150 feet 
lot width. The applicant requests a variance of 10 feet lot width. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Is anyone else here interested in this case today?  If 
so, please stand and raise your right hand and be sworn. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Raise your right hand, please.  Do you swear the 
testimony you’re about to give is the truth and nothing but the truth so help you 
God? 
 
Mr. Smith - Yes sir. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Please state your name for the record sir, and tell us 
what you’re requesting. 
 
Mr. Smith - I am Charles Smith from Engineering Design 
Associates.  I’m representing the contract purchaser, Mr. Tim Pitman. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - What was the name? 
 
Mr. Pitman - Tim Pitman. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - All right, sir, go ahead.  Tell us what you’re 
requesting, please. 
 
Mr. Smith -  This parcel’s 10.75 acres on Yarnell Road.  It abuts 
State Route 895. The property at Yarnell Road is only 140 feet wide and it’s an 
A-1 zone, which requires 150 feet. We’re requesting a variance of 10 feet so the 
lot meets the zoning requirements of that and they can build a house. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - I think the people that are in opposition to this case 
[unintelligible].  Quite a few of them were here last month.  Let me just ask you a 
question.  Why didn’t you have a representative here? 
 
Mr. Smith - Just confusion about who was supposed to be at the 
meeting and who wasn’t and the ball just got dropped and we’re sorry about that. 
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Mr. Nunnally - All right. Any questions from the Board? 82 
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Mr. Wright - Where do you propose to access this property? 
 
Mr. Smith - Originally, we were going to access the property from 
Yarnell Road, but in the month we’ve had since the deferral, VDOT has granted 
the contract purchaser a 50-foot right-of-way from Miller’s Crossing Trail, which 
parallels 895 and comes in from Yarnell Road.  The drive will actually be much, 
much shorter than we showed on the original plan. 
 
Mr. Wright - So, you would come in off of—Is that Pocahontas 
Parkway there?   
 
Mr. Smith - It’s 895. 
 
Mr. Wright - 895. 
 
Mr. Smith -  Yes sir. 
 
Mr. Wright - You could come in off of that at that—Have we got 
that?  There it is on the map. 
 
Mr. Smith - There’s a service road called Miller’s Crossing Trail 
that parallels 895. We would be coming off of that cul-de-sac now instead of 
Yarnell Road. 
 
Mr. Wright - Who owns the property that you will be crossing 
there? 
 
Mr. Smith - VDOT.  Office of General Services, technically, owns 
that parcel. 
 
Mr. Wright - Well, that’s VDOT’s property then. 
 
Mr. Smith - Yes. 
 
Mr. Wright - All the way from the parkway up to your property is 
owned by VDOT. 
 
Mr. Smith - I believe so.  Let me just check my plat. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Paul, would you flip to the aerial, please?  The 
property lines are shown there. 
 
Mr. Smith - Yes. All that property north of this property is all 
owned by VDOT or the Office of General Services. 
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Ms. Dwyer - You don’t have to cross anyone else’s property to get 
to yours other than the VDOT-owned parcel. 
 
Mr. Smith - No. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Okay. 
 
Mr. Wright - How wide is the access that you would have there?   
 
Mr. Smith - VDOT has granted them a 50-foot right of way. 
 
Mr. Pitman - I do have intentions to purchase— 
 
Mr. Blankinship - We need you to state your name and speak into the 
microphone. 
 
Mr. Pitman - Tim Pitman.  I do have intentions to buy this piece of 
property from the State after I purchase this 10.75 acres. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - What do you plan to do with this acreage? 
 
Mr. Pitman - I’m just going to put one home, dwelling, that’s it.  I 
just wanted to get out of the city and get into some country. 
 
Mr. Wright - Are you the purchaser? 
 
Mr. Pitman - Yes sir. 
 
Mr. Wright - Prospective purchaser?  Where would the house be 
located?  That was a big concern of the people that were in opposition.  They 
said there are some drainage problems there. 
 
Mr. Pitman - I’m going to be right in the middle of the 10 acres. 
 
Mr. Wright - You see that line that’s across on that photo there? 
 
Mr. Pitman - Yes. 
 
Mr. Wright - Would the home be to the left of that or to the right of 
that line? 
 
Mr. Pitman - To the left. 
 
Mr. Wright - Left? 
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Mr. Pitman -  Yes. 174 
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Mr. Wright - In other words, towards the bigger part of the 
property. 
 
Mr. Pitman - Correct. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - What kind of home will you be putting on the 
property? 
 
Mr. Pitman - I’ll be putting a modular. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Modular? 
 
Mr. Pitman - A pre-manufactured modular.  Stick-built home on a 
brick and block foundation. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Stick-built usually doesn’t mean modular, does it? 
 
Mr. Pitman - They say it’s all wood-built; it’s just on a steel frame 
being delivered. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Built in the factory and shipped. 
 
Mr. Pitman - Right.  It meets all HUD requirements and everything. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Have you spoken to Mr. Michael Riley who was here 
last month and spoke in opposition to this case? 
 
Mr. Pitman - Yes.  I spoke to him a couple weeks ago. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Okay. 
 
Mr. Pitman - His concern was that we would be too close to his 
property. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Did you allay his concerns or? 
 
Mr. Pitman - Yes.  I told him, I said we’ll be approximately 300 feet 
from the end of his property line where I’ll be putting the home. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - There’s something in the staff report about you selling 
part of this property to someone else? 
 
Mr. Pitman - Yes ma’am.  I have intentions to sell three acres of it 
to Mr. Riley. 
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Ms. Dwyer - That’s where the little hand is now on the screen? 
 
Mr. Pitman - Yes. 
 
Ms. Harris - Mr. Pitman, if you found earthworks on the property, 
what do you plan to do with those? 
 
Mr. Pitman - I’m planning on not disturbing as much as I can.  It’s 
just to where I’m going to put my home.  I’m just going to leave as much 
earthworks as I can. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Have you had an engineer look at the property to see 
where a good home site would be in terms of drainage and where a drainfield 
might be located? 
 
Mr. Pitman - Yes I have. The people that I’m purchasing the home 
from, they’ve got an engineer drawing up the septic system for me.  It’s going to 
be a drip system, is what they call it.  An engineered drip system. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - The land perks or will— 
 
Mr. Pitman - It perks for an engineered system. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - You say you offered to sell three acres of the 10 that 
you have?  You offered to sell it? 
 
Mr. Pitman - To Mr. Riley. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - To Mr. Riley. 
 
Mr. Pitman - Yes. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Did he accept your offer? 
 
Mr. Pitman - At the time, yes he did. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - You don’t have a contract on it. 
 
Mr. Pitman - No sir.  I couldn’t get a contract because I don’t own 
the piece of land yet. 
 
Ms. Harris - Where does he live in proportion, or where’s his 
property in proportion to the property you’re trying to sell him? 
 
Mr. Pitman - To the left of the little hand on the screen. 
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Mr. Blankinship - It’s the house immediately north of that. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - How would you describe the drainage problems on 
this property? 
 
Mr. Smith - I can show you. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - That would be fine.  He’s the engineer. 
 
Mr. Smith - There’s a drainage swell that runs down through the 
middle of the property, just to the northeast of the old house that’s on the 
property.  I don’t believe there’s any real drainage issues other than that.  VDOT 
has a [unintelligible] that comes across underneath Pocahontas Parkway that 
drains into that swale.  Most of the property, with the exception of that swale, is 
pretty high and there should be no drainage problems where he’s building his 
house. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Where does the water flow from the property? 
 
Mr. Smith - It actually flows across the property.  You can see—
Does this mouse work on this? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Sometimes it does. 
 
Mr. Smith - Here we go.  Drainage basically comes down through 
here.  You can see this dark area. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Right. 
 
Mr. Smith - That is the continuation of this drainage.  We would 
do nothing to impede that drainage, just continuing naturally where it goes now. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Is that an intermittent creek or? 
 
Mr. Smith - I have no idea.  I don’t think it’s any kind of creek.  It 
looks like it’s probably some type of wetlands, but— 
 
Mr. Wright - That’s away from these folks that were objecting. 
They were up north of that, well north of that. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I think there were some who—I can’t remember now 
where they lived. There was somebody who lived maybe on Barnes. 
 
Mr. Wright - If you move that hand up there to the north, up a little 
further. Some of them live right there. 
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Mr. Blankinship - That’s Mr. Riley. 
 
Mr. Wright - Then the others lived over here off of this Bronzeway 
Lane.  They’re at the opposite end of that drainage situation.  It appears to me 
from this photo, this property is heavily wooded. 
 
Mr. Pittman - Yes. 
 
Mr. Wright - What would be your plan as far as cutting down trees 
around the house?  How much would you have to clear away? 
 
Mr. Pittman - I’m just going to clear two acres.  Just enough to put 
my home and the drain field and have a little front and back yard.  I’m going to 
leave the rest of it all wooden and everything.  Mr. Dowdy has a concern and I 
did talk to him.  His concern was that he heard that I was going to put a trailer 
court there.  I reassured him that I was only going to put one home and that was 
it. 
 
Mr. Wright - What size would that be, the home?  You say it’s 
going to be a modular home? 
 
Mr. Pittman - Yes.  It’s a 2,200-square-foot home. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Any other questions for Mr. Pittman or Mr. Smith? 
 
Ms. Dwyer - There’s nothing in the staff report that is a request by 
the Department of Recreation and Parks to do any kind of documentation of the 
earthworks? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yes.  It’s Condition #4. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Okay.  Have you read all the conditions, sir, and are 
you in accord with those? 
 
Mr. Pittman - No I haven’t. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Okay.  Well, you need to do that. 
 
Mr. Pittman - The earthworks, I talked to Mr. Gregson at the 
Historical Preservation and Museum Services.  He’s researched it and said that 
those earthworks are not protected.  I think I sent Mr. Blankinship a copy of it. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yes, that’s in the staff report and in the packet. 
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Mr. Pitman - I did understand that one person had a concern about 
the earthworks, that they said it was protected. I did some research and found 
out, and talked to the supervisor.  He said that it was not protected. 
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Ms. Dwyer - Okay.  It may not be protected, but what the condition 
says is that you’ll permit the Department of Recreation and Parks to map and 
photograph the earthworks.  So, you’ll allow them to come on the property— 
 
Mr. Pitman - Yes ma’am, I will. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - —and record them, even though you’re not obligated 
to not disturb them. 
 
Mr. Pitman - Right.  The earthworks, basically, I talked to the 
adjacent owners.  They said it’s just a mosquito haven. They said water stays in 
it year-round and says the mosquitoes out there are real bad because of it.  I 
have no problems with them coming and photographing and mapping it out. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Okay. 
 
Mr. Smith - I can show you basically where the line of earthworks 
is on this. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Okay. 
 
Mr. Smith - This section right here, this house actually disturbed 
part of them when they built this house and they keep coming down.   There’s an 
old gun emplacement right there on the property.  You can see where the 
earthworks bulge out. The earthworks keep coming down like this down in this 
area.  This is the line of earthworks right here.  As I said, there’s a gun 
emplacement where the earthworks bulge out.  Then the earthworks keep 
coming across like this.  You can still see them coming across that tree line right 
there. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I’m guessing, looking at the placement of your house 
and the driveway location, that these are going to be quite disturbed through the 
building process. 
 
Mr. Smith - With the driveway, we should be able to come 
through here and skirt the earthworks.  The house, from the topography, should 
be located somewhere in this area right here.  If there’s any disturbance of the 
earthworks at all, it should be minimal. 
 
Mr. Pittman - The driveway will not be near the earthworks. 
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Mr. Nunnally - Any other questions? Do we have anybody here 
today that was here last month in opposition?  All right, sir.  You all have a seat 
and we’ll call you back when they’re through.   
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Mr. Riley - Good morning.  My name’s Mike Riley.  It appears 
that some of my concerns have been addressed. One of my wife’s and my 
biggest concerns was a drainage problem that we already have since the 
highway was put in and the County hasn’t really offered any relief for that. So, 
loading up with another septic system and well and all that made myself and 
some of the other adjoining property owners a little concerned.  Half the time, my 
back yard’s a swimming pool, so that was one of our biggest concerns, another 
load on the drainage and things like that.  If he’s going to have an engineered 
system that’s going to kind of offset that, then I guess I wouldn’t necessarily have 
any problems.  The other problem I had was the proximity of his dwelling to ours.  
We kind of bought in the area because we wanted some privacy and didn’t 
necessarily want a bunch of other houses sitting on top of us.  I don’t know.  I’ve 
been told by a few people that a modular was really just a trailer.  I’m not a 
realtor or any of that, but I was in the process of refinancing my home and they 
said I should probably do it before they built anything because a modular or 
trailer possibly would interfere with my appraisal and things like that.  If it’s going 
to be a stick-built home and there’s going to be some decent, I guess, 
construction that’s going to alleviate or prevent some of the extra drainage issues 
that I have, and the proximity where he’s stating that the house is going to be, 
then I don’t necessarily have any major complaints with it.  I’m just hoping there’s 
not going to be a lot of traffic down the road.  There was another driveway into 
the top of the property, well, I guess at the southwestern part of the property, but 
I guess he wants to use the northeastern area.  I don’t have any control over that. 
That was basically my concerns. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - You’re purchasing a portion of this property? 
 
Mr. Riley - We had talked about it, but it’s kind of still up in the 
air.  I hadn’t thought about it much any more.  It’s a little out of my price range at 
the moment.  I’ll have to see how that goes. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - One of the conditions to this case states, “At the time 
of building permit application, the applicant shall demonstrate that the property 
has been divided as shown on the exhibit submitted and the eastern half of the 
property has been conveyed to an adjoining property owner.” 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Better change that to “offer for sale.” 
 
Mr. Nunnally - All right. 
 
Ms. Harris - Mr. Riley, what’s the square footage of your house 
and maybe the houses of the neighborhood? 
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Mr. Riley - I know mine is a little over 3,000. 
 
Ms. Harris - Okay.  Are you no longer in opposition to this? 
 
Mr. Riley- I’m neutral at this particular point. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - You said something to the effect that you thought Mr. 
Pitman was going to do something to alleviate drainage problems.  I didn’t hear 
him say that. 
 
Mr. Riley - He said he was going to put in some engineered 
system, so I guess from my layman’s terms, I guess that’s better than what I 
have, I’m presuming. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - For the septic. 
 
Mr. Riley - Yes. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Right, but he’s not going to do anything to change the 
existing drainage issues. 
 
Mr. Riley - Right.  I’m presuming that what he’s going to build 
won’t be as harmful as a well and just drainfield.  I’m taking that means it will 
probably be better than what I have. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Any more questions for Mr. Riley?  Anyone else want 
to speak in opposition?  Would you like to have a short rebuttal, sir?  Would you 
like a short rebuttal?  Okay.  Hear none, that completes the case.  We’ll let you 
know later on today. Thank you for coming.  A-44-2006, Brenda Y. Corbett. 
 
DECISION 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Before we get started, we were thinking about 
amending Condition 6. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yes.  I put in there that it would be conveyed before 
building permit.  The neighbor sounded like he wasn’t too excited about buying it, 
so I think it should be changed to “offered for sale.” 
 
Mr. Wright - Is he proposing to sell off that piece? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - He’s proposing to sell it to the other gentleman who 
spoke, but the other gentleman said he wasn’t certain he was going to buy it. 
 
Mr. Wright - What’s that got to do with this case, our approving it? 
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Ms. Harris - The Condition #6. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I think it was just something that he had agreed to do 
and so we were obligating him to do it. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Right, exactly. 
 
Mr. Wright - Yeah, but if the other fellow doesn’t want to buy it, we 
can’t make him buy it. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Right. So, we should either say, “offer for sale,” or just 
strike the condition altogether.   
 
Mr. Wright - If you say, “has been conveyed to the adjoining 
property owner,” and the adjoining property owner doesn’t want to buy it, what 
are you going to do? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Right. I think we need to change that.  It should either 
say, “offered for sale” or I’ll strike the condition, whichever you prefer. 
 
Mr. Wright - If that’s a big deal. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - The guy said he couldn’t afford it.  He didn’t want to 
pay that kind of money for it. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Exactly.  As Ms. Dwyer said, he had stated that he 
was going to do that.  It made his case sound better, so I wanted to bind him to it.  
I didn’t want him to be able to come in and make representations like that and 
then not carry it through. 
 
Mr. Wright - You can say, just like you stated, that he has to offer 
to sell it. How about the price and all that business?  
 
Mr. Blankinship - That’s true.  He could offer to sell it for a million 
dollars, couldn’t he? 
 
Mr. Wright - Suppose the other guy says; I’ll give you a dollar for 
it? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - If it’s not important to the Board, we could just strike 
the condition.  It’s like anything else; it’s easier for staff to put it in there and for 
you to take it out, than to dream it up while we’re sitting here. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I would suggest that we just eliminate it so we’ll not 
get involved in all that. 
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Mr. Wright - If he wanted to build something back there again, he’d 
have to come back to the Board and we could deny it. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - The key is that we’re only approving one dwelling on 
the whole parcel. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Last month, the neighbors were here in opposition 
and this month they really weren’t. They had worked things out. They’re no 
longer really in an adversarial situation.  I don’t think it would do any harm to drop 
the condition at this point. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - I make a motion we approve it and we drop the 
Condition #6. 
 
Ms. Harris - Second the motion. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Motion by Mr. Kirkland, seconded by Ms. Harris that it 
be approved, dropping that motion.  All in favor say aye. Opposed?  Been 
approved. 
 
After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Mr. Kirkland, seconded by 
Ms. Harris, the Board granted application A-44-2006 for a variance from Section 
24-94 to build a one-family dwelling at 2380 Yarnell Road (Parcel 814-697-7483).  
The Board granted the variance subject to the following conditions: 
 
1.  Only one dwelling, as shown on the plan filed with the application, may be 
constructed pursuant to this approval. Any additional improvements shall comply 
with the applicable regulations of the County Code. Any substantial changes or 
additions may require a new variance. 
 
2.  Approval of this request does not imply that a building permit will be issued. 
Building permit approval is contingent on Health Department requirements, 
including, but not limited to, soil evaluation for a septic drainfield and reserve 
area, and approval of a well location. 
 
3.  At the time of building permit application, the applicant shall submit the 
necessary information to the Department of Public Works to ensure compliance 
with the requirements of the Chesapeake Bay Preservation Act and the code 
requirements for water quality standards. 
 
4.  The property owner shall permit the Department of Recreation and Parks to 
map and photograph any earthworks that may exist on the property. 
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5. The driveway to the proposed dwelling shall enter the property from the cul-de-
sac at the end of Millers Crossing Trail, as shown on the exhibit submitted on 
December 6, 2006. 
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Affirmative: Dwyer, Harris, Kirkland, Nunnally, Wright 5 
Negative:        0 
Absent:        0 
 
 
The Board granted this request, as it found from the evidence presented that, 
due to the unique circumstances of the subject property, strict application of the 
County Code would interfere with all reasonable beneficial use of the property, 
and authorizing this variance will neither cause a substantial detriment to 
adjacent property nor materially impair the purpose of the zoning regulations. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Next case. 
 
UP-46-2006 MR. AND MRS. STEPHEN RICE request a 
conditional use permit pursuant to Section 24-95(i)(4) to build a swimming pool at 
4280 Creighton Road (Charles A Smith) (Parcel 815-733-2288), zoned A-1, 
Agricultural District (Fairfield). 
 
Mr. Rice - Good morning, my name’s Steven Rice.  R-I-C-E. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Excuse me, sir.  Is anyone else here interested in this 
case?  If so, please stand and raise your right hand and be sworn.  All right. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Raise your right hand, please.  Do you swear the 
testimony you’re about to give is the truth and nothing but the truth so help you 
God? 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Please state your name again, sir, and tell us what 
you’re requesting. 
 
Mr. Rice - Steven Rice.  R-I-C-E.  We’re trying to build an in-
ground pool on our property and we need a special permit because it’s semi in 
the front yard and the side of the house, as opposed to the back. 
 
Ms. Harris - Mr. Rice, what are your neighbors’ reactions to your 
doing this? 
 
Mr. Rice - Actually, we don’t have any neighbors at the moment.  
They’re in the process of building this Hillcrest Farms. We did talk to one Oriental 
couple that’s moving in.  I suggested they build a privacy fence in the back of 
their property and they said they didn’t care, so. 
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Ms. Harris - I think the report said that there were two houses that 
this pool would be visible from. 
 
Mr. Rice - Actually, one of them is not sold at the moment, I 
believe. 
 
Ms. Harris - I didn’t hear that. 
 
Mr. Rice - It’s built but it’s not sold. 
 
Ms. Harris - You’re saying that the homes that are visible have no 
occupants at this time? 
 
Mr. Rice - No ma’am. 
 
Ms. Harris - Okay.  Is this house near a flood plain? 
 
Mr. Rice - Down in the bottom, the Chickahominy River is about 
a mile away. 
 
Ms. Harris - I was by there during the week, and I noticed that 
there were some deep ravines around. 
 
Mr. Rice - Behind the house there is one and in front of the 
house. 
 
Ms. Harris - Did that influence your decision to build your 
swimming pool on the side/front? 
 
Mr. Rice - Actually, because there are so many trees in the 
back, they’re full of leaves all the time and gumballs.  Plus our septic system’s 
back there and our property is not real wide in the back of the house. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Could we go back to the other picture, Mr. Gidley? 
 
Mr. Gidley - Which one? 
 
Ms. Dwyer - The one before this one, the photo of the front of the 
house where the porch is.  Could you describe to us exactly where the pool is 
going to go since I don’t think we have a plat that shows the location? 
 
Mr. Rice - All right. The pool will be in this area right here, 
starting here and running down towards this tree right here at an angle.  We have 
40 feet from the corner of the house to where the mouse is, somewhere in there. 
 

December 21, 2006  Board of Zoning Appeals  15



Ms. Dwyer - So, the entire pool will be forward of your front, the 
front of your house? The entire pool will be in front of your house? 
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Mr. Rice - No.  It will be at an angle right to that corner of the 
house.  It will be like cattycorner to the house. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Do you have any plans that you can show us about 
what the pool will look like or— 
 
Mr. Rice - No. We were planning on a 16 by 32, at the largest. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - It will be a cement pool or? 
 
Mr. Rice - In-ground cement. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - This is the legal front yard. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - It could go either way. The house is angled to one of 
the corners and since the lot doesn’t front on a public street, you could call either 
the southwest or southeast. 
 
Mr. Wright - It’s perfectly square, isn’t it? 
 
Mr. Rice - It sits on a diamond-shaped lot more or less. The 
house sits kind of to the left-hand side of the lot. 
 
Mr. Wright - Looking at the plat, it’s 209 feet on every side, isn’t it? 
 
Ms. Dwyer - The lot is square, but the house is at an angle inside 
the square. 
 
Mr. Wright - Where is the front? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - You could argue the southwest or the southeast side, 
since the access sort of comes in almost on the corner.  If I had to choose, I’d go 
with the southwest where the access actually enters.  It looks like when it was 
developed, it was the southeast because you’ve got a 40.3-foot setback there. 
That would not meet the front yard setback, but it would meet the side yard 
setback.  It appears that when the house was built, it was interpreted that that 
southwest side was the side yard and the southeast was the front yard. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - What kind of fencing will you have around the pool? 
 
Mr. Rice - According to your ordinances here, I was thinking of a 
six-foot privacy fence on two sides and then like a picket fence on the side 
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towards the house.  It says here you can only have a three-foot, six-inch fence in 
your front yard. 
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Ms. Dwyer - Isn’t there an ordinance— 
 
Mr. Rice - It’s gotta be a four-foot for around the pool, at least 
four foot. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - There’s an unfortunate conflict between the Building 
Code and the Zoning Ordinance here.  It’s one of the issues you’re going to face 
any time you put a pool in the front yard. The zoning ordinance only allows a 
three-foot, six-inch fence in the front yard, but the Building Code requires a taller 
fence than that around the pool. The way we can resolve that is if the fence 
around the pool complies with the setbacks for a structure, then it can be taller 
than three feet, six inches. The three feet, six inches thing assumes that the 
fence is on the property line or near the property line. That’s why you have that. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Here it could be taller. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - As long as it complies with the building setback, which 
would be 20 feet from that side lot line. 
 
Ms. Harris - Does that need to be a condition? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - It’s going to be enforced whether it’s in here or not. 
 
Mr. Wright - So, he would have to put the pool at least 20 feet from 
that side line. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Right, in order to have the fence there that complies 
with the Building Code and the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Rice - So, what you’re saying, it has to be 20 feet from my 
property line towards the house? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Right. 
 
Mr. Rice - It’s gotta be 10 feet from the house. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Right. 
 
Mr. Rice - So, that’s 30 feet and only a 10-foot wide pool. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - The house comes to a corner there, so you can move 
it forward or back to comply. 
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Mr. Nunnally - Any other questions for Mr. Rice? 767 
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Ms. Dwyer - As we’re looking at the aerial, the drainfield is in a 
cleared area behind the house? 
 
Mr. Rice - You mean for the septic system? 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Yes. 
 
Mr. Rice - Yes.  I guess it would be the opposite corner of where 
we’re putting the pool. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - You have enough space for the pool in the back, you 
just have to clear— 
 
Mr. Rice - Actually, there’s a couple of trees there.  Yes. Well, 
the way that property line is, and plus we built a porch on the back, and it comes 
across there at an angle anyway, so.  Ten foot from there and ten foot from the 
house, we’d be in kind of like the same predicament without clearing a lot of 
trees, which I really didn’t want to destroy the trees.  Prospect Homes has done 
enough of that.  I didn’t know there were so many conditions when applied for 
this thing. It looks like now we probably couldn’t even do it unless it was in the 
backyard because you’ve got to have too much cement around the pool.  My 
pool is down to a lap pool, five feet wide, so I don’t think it’s gonna work out 
anyway. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - All right. Any other questions?  Is anyone here in 
opposition to this request?  Hear none, that completes the case. Thank you for 
coming.  UP-46-2006, Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Rice. 
 
DECISION 
 
Ms. Harris - I move that this be denied.  When we considered 
what the swimming pool requirements were and the County’s requirements, we 
find the best place for the pool is in the backyard. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Second. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Motion by Ms. Harris it be denied. Second by Ms. 
Dwyer. All in favor say aye. Been denied. 
 
After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Ms. Harris, seconded by 
Ms. Dwyer, the Board denied application UP-46-2006 request for a conditional 
use permit pursuant to Section 24-95(i)(4) to build a swimming pool at 4280 
Creighton Road (Charles A Smith) (Parcel 815-733-2288). 
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Affirmative: Dwyer, Harris, Kirkland, Nunnally, Wright 5 
Negative:        0 
Absent:        0 
 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Next case. 
 
A-49-2006 L. WENDELL ALLEN requests a variance from 
Section 24-95(b)(8) to build a one-family dwelling at 978 Scott Road (Garden 
City) (Parcel 785-758-4511), zoned A-1, Agricultural District (Fairfield). The lot 
width requirement and total lot area requirement are not met. The applicant has 
28,900 sq. ft. total lot area and 100 ft. lot width, where the Code requires 30,000 
sq. ft. total lot area and 150 ft. lot width. The applicant requests a variance of 
1,100 sq. ft. total lot area and 50 ft. lot width. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Is anyone else here interested in this case?  If so, 
please stand and raise your right hand to be sworn. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Raise your right hand please.  Do you swear the 
testimony you’re about to give is the truth and nothing but the truth so help you 
God? 
 
Mr. Allen - I do. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Please state your name for the record sir, and tell us 
what you’re requesting.  
 
Mr. Allen - Good morning.  My name is Leroy Wendell Allen, Jr., 
and I am requesting a variance whereas the property has a hundred feet road 
frontage and I think the County requires 150 feet, as well as the property total 
square footage is 28,900 and there’s a 30,000 square foot ordinance in place 
currently.  As the Board can see, Garden City is a residential area whereas the 
plat was developed around 1920 and it was developed for a residential 
community. What I’m proposing to do is, basically, build a single-family dwelling 
there for myself.  I looked at the suggested conditions.  I’ve spoken with my 
contractor.  My contractor assured me that there’s no problem to meet the 
suggested conditions that the Board has proposed. 
 
Ms. Harris - Have you spoken with your neighbors, your 
prospective neighbors? 
 
Mr. Allen - No, I have not.  I know my realtor, when I was first 
looking at the property, did speak with the neighbor.  She’s here with me.  I’ve 
not told them that.  I haven’t gone to knock on the door to speak with them about 
it.  I did not foresee any objection, being that this is a residential community.  It’s 
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a neighborhood.  It isn’t set up as a rural area; it’s set up as a neighborhood. The 
lots are clearly cut.  If you would look at the aerial view, what the County has is 
clearly set up as residential.  All those lots are each 100 foot except for the 
neighbor in 1000 Scott Road. A portion of that has been cut off for a proposed 
road in the original plat where there was a 30-foot easement between each of the 
properties for the County, as well as the cutoff right there into his property. So, I 
think his property is about around 90 or 80 foot road frontage.  Other than that, 
the strict design of the entire Garden City neighborhood is a residential 
community of homes.  It’s just this particular area was not fully developed.  I 
purchased a lot.  I plan on building a home for myself.  I just did not foresee 
anyone having any objections to me building a home in this community. 
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Mr. Wright - Did the house on 1000 get a variance?  That lot looks 
like a little smaller than this lot. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yeah, with the corner cut off.  I would think it must 
have, Mr. Wright, but I’m sorry, I don’t know that. 
 
Mr. Wright - What is that on 970?  Is that a house? 
 
Mr. Allen - That is a house. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Do we know anything about the status of the right-of-
way?  Is that essentially abandoned by the County or is it something that may 
eventually be built? 
 
Mr. Allen - When I spoke with the County representative over—I 
think I spoke with someone over in Economic Development.  They said that they 
knew of no intended purpose for the road at this point in time.  
 
Mr. Blankinship - I don’t believe it’s been abandoned.  The adjoining 
property owners would have to apply for abandonment. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - So, if it was vacated.  Is that what you’re trying to 
state.  It still wouldn’t help him with this problem, would it? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - It would help.  It wouldn’t get him all the way there. 
 
Mr. Wright - He’d still need a variance. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - This lot was created in the 1920’s, is that right? 
 
Mr. Allen - Yes. The plat was designed in 1920, yes, before the 
1960 ordinance came about. 
 
Ms. Harris - This is really a paper street, right? 
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Mr. Blankinship - Yes ma’am. 
 
Mr. Allen - Yes ma’am.   I’ve spoken with my builder, and as I 
stated, the 20 foot setback on each side of the property line is not a problem.  I 
plan on putting it pretty much in the middle. I think the width of the property will 
be somewhere between 36 and 32 feet wide, which puts me well within the 
setback that is suggested. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - What would be your planned setback from Scott 
Road?  I noticed the house at 970 is fairly close to the road and the house at 
1000 is set back more. We don’t have continuity along the street.  Had you given 
any thought to that? 
 
Mr. Allen - Not a whole lot, but some.  It would probably be 
similar to around what 1000 is set back. 
 
Ms. Harris - The home at 970 is an older home? 
 
Mr. Allen - Yes ma’am, it is. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I would hate to see you set it back any further from 
the road than the house at 1000. 
 
Mr. Allen - I don’t plan on setting it back too far.  I want a nice 
size backyard and that would allow me to have a decent size backyard. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Any other questions for Mr. Allen?  Anyone here in 
opposition to this request? 
 
Mr. Allen - Thank you. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Have a seat, Mr. Allen. We’ll call you back. 
 
Ms. Beering - My name is Michele Beering and this is my husband, 
Mark. We aren’t opposed to the individual building there.  We were just worried 
that—I didn’t want to open my door and have to kiss my neighbor.  We wanted to 
make sure his property weren’t this big humungous house.  It takes away from 
our value when we go to sell.  That was our main concern. If he’s going to do 
what he says, then, he’s clarified that it wouldn’t be like that.  I wanted to know 
what size home he was going to build there because all around us is really big 
houses being built now.  That was one of the concerns and we had a concern. 
 
Mr. Beering - My name is Mark Beering.  My concern was, I guess, 
in the front. It’s like a swamp-type area there that stays wet all the time. What 
actually can be done about that?  Also, I guess, by the County owning the 
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property, his property is going to have at least what, 15 feet from the property line 
where the County owns? 
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Ms. Beering - From each side.  When we build, we’d have 15 on 
each side of the house? 
 
Ms. Dwyer - He’s going to have 20. 
 
Ms. Beering - He’s going to have 20 on each side? 
 
Ms. Dwyer - From his property line.  Actually, there’s a street area 
between your house and his property line. 
 
Ms. Beering - Do you know how wide the street area between his 
property line and ours would be? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Just a moment and I’ll see if this map will tell me. 
 
Mr. Wright - When was your house built? 
 
Ms. Beering - 2001, I think. 
 
Mr. Wright - Did you have to get a variance? 
 
Ms. Beering - Yes.  Gooden Construction Company. 
 
Mr. Wright - So, you’re asking for the same thing he’s asking for 
today. 
 
Ms. Beering - Yes.  No.  Yeah, we asked for the same thing, but we 
wanted to make sure the rules hadn’t changed all of a sudden.  He can build and 
not have that 15 on each side all of a sudden, he can just do whatever.  That’s 
all.  We just wanted to make sure the rules hadn’t changed. 
 
Mr. Wright - He’s got the same requirements that you had to build. 
 
Ms. Beering - Yes, we hope so. 
 
Mr. Wright - In so far as the side lot line and so forth. 
 
Ms. Beering - Okay. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - The condition imposes a greater restriction on the 
applicant.  It requires a 20-foot setback from the side lines.  Could you spell your 
last name, please? 
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Ms. Beering - B-E-E-R-I-N-G. 997 
998 
999 
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Mr. Blankinship - I show the road right-of-way is 40 feet wide.  I can’t be 
sure that’s accurate. 
 
Ms. Beering - We don’t oppose it, we just want to make sure— 
 
Mr. Beering - That they’re going to have enough if the road is— 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Making sure your interests are protected. 
 
Ms. Beering -  Yes. 
 
Ms. Harris - Do you have a swamp problem? 
 
Mr. Beering - In the front, it’s— 
 
Ms. Harris - You do? 
 
Ms. Beering - Yes ma’am. That side of the road is always flooded. 
Whenever it rains, it floods on that side. 
 
Ms. Beering - Even if it’s a light rain, you can see it’s wet. 
 
Ms. Harris - That’s on your side? 
 
Ms. Beering - His side. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - All right. Any other questions?   
 
Mr. Beering - It’s right along in here and over towards the right a 
little bit. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - How about further back? 
 
Mr. Beering - Further back, right in there it stays wet a little bit.  I 
don’t know if they checked to see if it perked or what. That’s the only concerns I 
have. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Thank you very much.  Mr. Allen, will you come back 
up, please?  I think you know what size you’re going to build.  Can you give us 
the square footage? 
 
Mr. Allen - Right now I plan on building—I spoke with my 
contractor.  He has the home. The home is going to be 1800 square feet.  I 
haven’t decided on a one- or two-car garage. 
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Mr. Nunnally - That a two-story or a one-story? 
 
Mr. Allen - Two stories.  That’s why I say 36 to 42 feet wide 
because I hadn’t decided on the one-car garage or the two-car garage.  It isn’t 
going to be any larger than 1800 square feet.  I do believe from the plat, the large 
plat shows that the County’s easement is a 30 foot easement in between the 
properties.  I think at that time, the road only had to be 30 feet wide.   
 
Mr. Blankinship - You think it’s 30 rather than 40.  You may be right.  
This map is not accurate to the foot.   
 
Mr. Wright - Mr. Blankinship, what’s the minimum size required for 
this zoning? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - It’s 900. 
 
Mr. Wright - So, you’d be building twice the size that the ordinance 
permits. 
 
Mr. Allen - Yes sir.   
 
Mr. Blankinship - According to your records, the houses on either side 
are about 1,300 and 1,500.  Fairly consistent with the neighborhood. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Have you looked into the drainage issues on the 
property? 
 
Mr. Allen - No, I have not looked into it.  I’ve spoken with an 
engineer that’s going to be doing a perk test for me and I’ll have him look and tell 
me what would be the best proposed plan.  It sounds like from what the 
gentleman was stating, that particular location, that’s part of the County’s 
easement and so I don’t know how much I would be able to do. I’m assuming 
that it’s coming from the roadway, the runoff from the roadway is causing the 
problems because behind all of that is a wooded area. I’m assuming it’s coming 
from the roadway and it’s in the County property. I doubt I’d be able to address 
that.  That would be up to the County. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - You might also want to consider that as an issue 
when you decide how you’re gonna build your house. 
 
Mr. Allen -  I will. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Varina has a lot of flat land that holds water. 
 
Ms. Harris - Have you already purchased the land? 
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Mr. Allen - Yes, I already own the land. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - All right, sir. Thank you so much from coming down. 
 
Mr. Allen - Thank you very much. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - A-49-2006, L. Wendell Allen. 
 
DECISION 
 
Ms. Harris - I move that we approve the variance because without 
the variance, there’s no reasonable beneficial use of this property, which was 
deeded back in the 20’s. The other lots in the neighborhood are of similar size. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Motion by Ms. Harris. Do I have a second? 
 
Mr. Kirkland - I’ll second that. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Second by Mr. Kirkland.  All in favor—Oh, excuse me.  
Discussion? 
 
Ms. Dwyer - My only concern, and as I looked at the site plan, one 
of the houses is very close to the property on one side of this lot, one is quite a 
distance from Scott Street.  I’m going to—What do you all think about putting a 
condition that requires the house on this property to be no closer to Scott Street 
than the house at 1000 Scott Street, to have some continuity along the street so 
at least new construction is in alignment. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - I have no problem with that as long as it doesn’t 
interfere with his septic system.  He might have to move his house further 
forward a little bit to get enough land in the back for it to perk. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - If it’s too far forward, then the next one over is going 
to be looking into the— 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Yeah.  I would like them to in line, too, as long as it 
doesn’t affect his septic.  If it’s wet, it’s going to be a rather large thing unless he 
uses an alternative septic system. 
 
Mr. Wright - I thought he said he was going to try to line it up with 
that. 
 
Ms. Harris - He did.  He also has an engineer looking into the 
[unintelligible].   
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Mr. Kirkland - Seems to me Scott Road seems to be very wide 
through there so most of his front yard looks like the area through there, the 
easement, looks like it’s the County’s.  That seems like a very wide stretch 
through there, more than 50 feet.   Yes ma’am, I’m in agreement in keeping in 
line as long as it doesn’t affect his septic.  I don’t know how we can word that. 
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Ms. Dwyer - Can you think of a way to word it that would take care 
of that? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - I guess what I’m not sure about is the house at 970. 
 
Ms. Harris - That’s an older home.  The neighborhood is like that.   
 
Mr. Kirkland - I think that was the home place. 
 
Ms. Harris - Yes. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - If we’re pushing this house back, then we’re pushing it 
into 970’s backyard.  If we push it forward, then 1000 is in his backyard.   
 
Ms. Harris - I think he has experts working on it when it comes to 
the construction and wet problems they have.  I think they’re going to have to go 
by what the experts say is going to be the best. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - One thing, there is a buffered zone, Mr. Blankinship, 
from the old house to the property line of 970.  All those trees are there so if he 
did push it back even with the one, it would be kind of buffered a little bit by trees, 
I think.  Don’t you think?  At least by this aerial that’s what it’s showing.  The 
distance seems to be greater from the 970 house to the new house than it is from 
the 1000 to the new house. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I don’t feel that strongly about it, it’s just a concern I 
have about developing some consistency in the streetscape along here, as we 
have an older subdivision with smaller lots.  If you don’t think it’s workable, Mr. 
Blankinship, I don’t mind withdrawing that.  We’re dealing with some substandard 
lots. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - 1004 and 1008 will probably be in here shortly, if this 
keeps going.  1004 and 1008.  There are no existing dwellings on those, are 
there? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - No. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - You need to start lining them up somewhere. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yes. 
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Ms. Dwyer - We can line them up from now forward. 
 
Mr. Wright - You could say if you really wanted to, that the house 
would be located so that it would at least be in line with 1000. 
 
Ms. Harris - This was not her concern.  The concern of those 
homeowners was the buffer area and they seemed satisfied. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - This is not something that they mentioned.  I think if 
they’re looking in somebody’s backyard—If that was somebody else’s house, 
they wouldn’t be happy. 
 
Mr. Wright - They’re required to put it back 50 feet, aren’t they? 
 
Ms. Harris - Yes. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - How far back is 1000? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - About a 100.  Roughly 100 feet.   
 
Mr. Wright - You put it back 50 feet, you could draw a line from 
1000 to 970 and it would probably be right straight. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - You’d probably cross it at some point. 
 
Ms. Harris - Might be more than that because of the wet problem 
he has.  I think it’s [unintelligible] for us to sit here and determine just how many 
feet, other than going by the guidelines that the County set. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Okay, what are we going to do?  Are we going by Ms. 
Harris’ motion or are we going to say its got to be lined up with the other house? 
 
Ms. Harris - I think the County’s taken care of that when it said 50 
feet, don’t you think?  If his engineer finds that he can’t do that because of the 
problem that site has, that site imposes, then they’re going to have to move it 
back probably even further.  He bought the lot, so I hope he knows what he’s— 
 
Mr. Wright - You could say that it will not be more than 100 feet 
back. That makes it even with 1000.  That gives him between 50 feet to work it. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - That’s good.  No more than 100, no less than 50. 
 
Mr. Wright - It’s got to be 50 feet. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Right. 
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Mr. Wright - You could say shall be no more than 100 feet from 
Scott Street. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - That boxes it in a little bit. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Yes.   
 
Mr. Nunnally - You got that, sir?  Ben? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yes sir. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Okay. All in favor say aye.  Opposed?  Been 
approved. 
 
After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Mr. Harris, seconded by 
Mr. Kirkland, the Board granted application A-49-2006 for a variance from 
Section 24-95(b)(8) to build a one-family dwelling at 978 Scott Road (Garden 
City) (Parcel 785-758-4511).  The Board granted the variance subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1.  This variance applies only to the lot width and lot area requirements for one 
dwelling only. All other applicable regulations of the County Code shall remain in 
force. 
 
2.  Approval of this request does not imply that a building permit will be issued. 
Building permit approval is contingent on Health Department requirements, 
including, but not limited to, soil evaluation for a septic drainfield and reserve 
area, and approval of a well location. 
 
3.  At the time of building permit application, the applicant shall submit the 
necessary information to the Department of Public Works to ensure compliance 
with the requirements of the Chesapeake Bay Preservation Act and the code 
requirements for water quality standards. 
 
4.  The proposed dwelling shall be set back a minimum of 20 feet from each side 
property line. 
 
5.  The proposed dwelling shall be built on a crawl space with an exterior brick 
foundation. 
 
6.  [ADDED] The proposed dwelling shall be set back no more than 100 feet from 
the right-of-way of Scott Road. 
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Mr. Nunnally - Next case, Mr. Blankinship, 
 
UP-47-2006 VULCAN CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS, LP 
requests a conditional use permit pursuant to Sections 24-103 and 24-52(d) to 
extract materials from the earth at 4705 Curles Neck Road (Parcels 833-678-
0193, 833-680-7719 and 836-667-5251), zoned A-1, Agricultural District (Varina). 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Anyone else here interested in this case?  If so, will 
you please stand and raise your right hand? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Raise your right hand, please. Do you swear the 
testimony you’re about to give is the truth and nothing but the truth so help you 
God? 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Please state your name for the record, sir, and tell us 
what you’re requesting. 
 
Mr. Lewis -  My name is Monty Lewis. I’m with Lewis and 
Associates, civil engineers on this project for several years now.  With me is Tom 
Brazzle with Vulcan.  What we’re asking for is to continue the mining that right 
now is—I you look on your map, the areas in green are what you approved in ’05, 
this area.  We put the bridge in across here to service this area.  What we’re 
asking for is the mining area in this purple color on this side and then the 
extension on the north side of this mining area.  We’re presently mining this area 
and the green area right now. The bridge is in place. I haven’t heard of any 
problems that they’ve had with the bridge or with dust problems.  I rode by there 
last weekend and everything looked fine. We’ve met with Public Works a couple 
of times about erosion control on the north side and reconfigured ourselves that 
we’re mining to do a better job on the ENS.  We have applied for the ENS plans 
with the County.  It’s going to be in two phases on this side because we have 
some wetlands to deal with.  Our first phase will not impact any wetlands.  Our 
second phase, we have to get the wetlands permit, which we’re applying for now.  
We have monitoring wells in place.  Tom can help me out here.  I believe they 
are—We have a perennial stream, an RPA along right here at this side.  We 
have a buffer that we’re reforesting. That was due to none of our work, but the 
landowner had it timbered and they went too far.  We’re going to reforest that. 
We’re going to be creating wetlands that were with this ’05 case down in this 
area as part of the permit with the DEQ in the core.  We have monitoring wells 
between us and the perennial stream.  This area drains down to this perennial 
stream.  Our area drains this way, so our mining activities here do not impact any 
wells that they may have on this side, because they get—Their water 
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underground flows kind of like is does on the surface down towards the perennial 
stream. As a condition of the ’05 case, we’ve put in monitoring wells and we’re 
watching those. We haven’t really had to pump any of these areas. Once it’s all 
finished and reclaimed, they’ll be more like recharge areas because this one will 
drain into the wetland, which will go into the perennial stream.  In these areas, it’ll 
be open pits like we have on this side of Curls Neck where it holds the water and 
it perks into the sand.  If you have any questions, I’ll be glad to answer them. 
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Ms. Dwyer - What about wells south of New Market?  Is there any 
monitoring of those? 
 
Mr. Brazzle - If I could, my name is Tom Brazzle.  I’m a manager of 
Geological Services with Vulcan Materials. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Can you get into that microphone so we can hear a 
little better? 
 
Mr. Brazzle - Yes sir. We hired a professional hydrologist from 
Northern Virginia, a Dr. David Bust, to design the layout of the observation wells.  
We have three in this area. We have one along the power line near Route 5 and 
we have one here.  We’re encircling these areas that we’re mining.  We monitor 
those at least once a month and to the best of my knowledge, there’s been no 
significant change in the water levels.  In fact, this area here was—This is 
depleted and we now have a lake in that area. 
 
Mr. Wright - Mr. Blankinship, may I ask a question?  I understand 
all the materials, the excavated materials will be removed through, on the James 
River by barge.  Is that correct? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yes sir. 
 
Mr. Wright - What is #15, “Trucks shall be loaded in a way to 
prevent overloading or spilling on any [unintelligible] or on any public road.”  How 
does that—They’re not taking any materials off on a public road, are they? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - No sir. That’s a standard condition that probably 
should have been removed. 
 
Mr. Wright - I was just curious, because that indicates to me that 
they could take it off on a public road.  Don’t we need to eliminate that, that 
particular condition? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Probably should, yes sir. 
 
Mr. Wright - Okay. 
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Ms. Harris - I do come through this way and I do admire how you 
keep the area clean.  I was looking week before last.  You put some type of 
materials on the road, do you, to water down or something? 
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Mr. Lewis - Correct. We have to keep dust down, so periodically a 
water truck runs through all of the roads and wets it down. 
 
Ms. Harris - Okay.  So, if there’s dust, that’s from the mining?  It’s 
not from the spilling of materials, getting back to Condition 15. 
 
Mr. Lewis - Right.  The dust is mainly from the traffic of the 
tractors and the trucks.  It’s not really the mining operation that creates the dust.  
It’s mined down here, loaded on trucks, and then the trucks come down the road. 
As the trucks travel on the road, you have to watch the dust from that. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Again, they’re not on a public road. 
 
Mr. Lewis - No ma’am. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - They’re just crossing on the bridge and otherwise 
they’re on private property. 
 
Mr. Wright - Is there much traffic in and out of the property? 
 
Mr. Lewis - I’ll let Tom talk to how many times the trucks cross 
that bridge.  They extract materials here, come across the bridge and down 
through here, way on down to the James River loading area. 
 
Mr. Wright - They don’t go on a public road. 
 
Mr. Lewis - No sir.  The only trucks that would cross right here is 
the workers coming in, in the morning.  Their pickup trucks will come in here. We 
have a parking area for them.  We probably have one or two workers that come 
in. 
 
Mr. Brazzle - I would guess no more than three or four. Normally, 
you have one person who operates the equipment that loads the trucks and there 
may be a bulldozer operator.  Normally, you have one person in that area. 
 
Mr. Wright - Number 13, that talks about a flagman to control 
traffic onto the public road.  The way this operation is, that may be the people 
who are driving there to work, but I would not anticipate there would be a lot of 
traffic in and out of the site, if all of the material is taken and off-loaded onto 
barges on the river. 
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Mr. Blankinship - I don’t believe we’ve ever asked them to provide a 
flagman. 
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Mr. Wright - You don’t need a flagman, do you? 
 
Mr. Lewis - We don’t need a flagman, we never had one.  We 
didn’t have any problem with the condition staying there if you want it because it 
does say if warranted by the Police Department. 
 
Mr. Wright - I would think that you wouldn’t want a condition that 
you have to have a flagman if you don’t need one. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Well, on the other hand, if something happened to the 
bridge, let’s say, and they had to use, for any reason, had to use the roadway, it 
might be good just to leave those standard conditions in there.  If they don’t 
apply, you don’t use them. 
 
Mr. Lewis - Right. The requirement is only there, I believe, if it 
was required by the police. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Right. 
 
Mr. Lewis - We leave it to their discretion.  We’re okay. 
 
Mr. Wright - Do you have a flagman? 
 
Mr. Lewis - No sir. 
 
Mr. Wright - Then you’re violating the condition. 
 
Mr. Lewis - Only if the police say we’re required to have a 
flagman. 
 
Mr. Wright - It says, “Shall provide a flagman.” 
 
Mr. Blankinship - The second sentence. “The flagman will be required 
whenever the Division of Police deems necessary.”  I don’t think there’s any 
harm in deleting the condition. 
 
Mr. Wright - Okay. 
 
Mr. Lewis - We’re fine with leaving it. 
 
Ms. Harris - They have trucks that go in and come out periodically; 
I’ve seen. 
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Mr. Lewis - Pickup trucks. The workers coming to work and 
going— 
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Ms. Harris - No, they’re not pickup trucks. They’re steel trucks I’ve 
seen come out of that site where the sign is near New Market Road. 
 
Mr. Brazzle - Excuse me, ma’am, do you mean the entrance to the 
farm? 
 
Ms. Harris - No, it says, “Vulcan.” 
 
Mr. Brazzle - Yes ma’am. There are two columns at the entrance to 
the farm. Is that where you’re referring to? 
 
Ms. Harris - I am not— 
 
Mr. Brazzle - What brick columns? 
 
Ms. Harris - I’m not sure.  I just know the sign [unintelligible] 
Vulcan and periodically that come out. 
 
Mr. Brazzle - It could be maintenance, it could be the farm trucks. 
The farmer—The land that their farm is—It’s leased to a farmer I believe named 
David Hoola.  They bring out semis with grain and other products. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Do they use the same road as your operation?  Is that 
what you’re saying? 
 
Mr. Brazzle - No sir. They do not use the hall road that crosses 
Route 5, but they do use the road on the farm itself. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Okay. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I guess it’s your letter and the staff report indicates 
that the dept of excavation will be an average of 60 feet and 55 feet for the two 
mined parcels? 
 
Mr. Lewis - That’s correct, yes. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - And that they will be reclaimed to a slope no steeper 
than 5 to 1, which is pretty steep. 
 
Mr. Lewis - Well ma’am, that’s the slope that’s actually less than 
the County requirement, in terms of maximum angle.  That’s the maximum angle 
you could effectively work with a tractor for sowing and maintenance.  The 
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County standard’s 3 to 1 where you go over 3 and up 1. We’re going 5 and up 1, 
which is easily mobile. 
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Ms. Dwyer - Okay.  You mentioned there was a lake created on 
the northern parcel, UP-2-2005.  The lake will remain as part of that reclamation. 
Will there be a body of water created from this mining operation or will it be 
graded so that it’s seeded and planted? 
 
Mr. Lewis - The phases are laid out in three distinct phases north 
of Route 5.  The first one will have no wetlands impact and it will create an 
internal drainage area and there’ll be a pond in the center of that area. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - In the one north of Route 5, did you say? 
 
Mr. Lewis - Yes ma’am. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Okay. 
 
Mr. Lewis - The second phase will be tied in with the UP-2-2005 
and the drainage will actually extend the pond that we’ve currently created. It’s 
going to increase the area for drainage and help us with our wetlands creation 
there.  The third phase will be on the southern part and that will also be an 
internal drainage area with a pond in the center. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - It’ll be a 5 to 1 slope to the pond. 
 
Mr. Lewis - No greater than 5 to 1. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Okay. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Mr. Blankinship, this operation has been going on for 
a very good while. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yes sir. Well, the part north of New Market Road is 
new. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - I don’t think we’ve ever had a complaint about them, 
have we? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Certainly not in the time I’ve been here. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - That’s what I’m saying. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - What kind of future use will there be for this property 
when the mining is completed? 
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Mr. Lewis - We are currently returning it to agricultural or 
[unintelligible].  Whatever the current owners decide will be the ultimate fate of 
the property.  I would imagine some type of mixed development, but I’ve not 
been involved with those discussions. 
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Ms. Dwyer - Would it support houses do you think, houses or 
commercial development? 
 
Mr. Lewis - I really don’t know. This was part of the property when 
they sold Curles Neck Farms to I think it’s three individuals, one being Mr. Pruitt. 
This is part of that property as is all this to the south, which was mined, which 
has the ponds.  I really don’t know what their plans are. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - The Land Use Plan shows it’s Prime Agricultural and 
Conservation. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Any other questions?  Is anyone here in opposition to 
this request?  Will you please come forward?  Please state your name and tell us 
what you’re— 
 
Mr. Marshall - Marvin Marshall. 
 
Ms. Marshall - Cynthia Marshall. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - All right. 
 
Ms. Marshall - We are on Long Bridge Road as you go up a little on 
your map.  I’m not sure exactly where our property lines are on there.  We have 
some concerns.  Number one, how long will this operation be going on. We know 
the operation on the other side of Route 5 has been going on for many years.  
We were a bit disconcerted to learn that the bridge had been put across and no 
one from Curles Neck had ever said a word, although we have not really had any 
real communications with the graveling operation.  From time to time, we’ve 
certainly had communications with Curles Necks owners in general.  We have 
certainly helped to oversee, not to oversee but to help them protect some of the 
property.  Some of our other concerns are, of course, with the wells.  I see that 
they have attempted to explain how they are addressing that, but we do want to 
know what happens if those precautions do not work and the water supply is 
compromised.  The Marshall property was a farm.  It has been split up among 
Marshall heirs and we are now in the home place. We have spent the last few 
years renovating the home place and may have done something differently had 
we known that this was going to be behind us and, quite frankly, probably 
compromised our ability if we do decide to sell a couple of building lots to 
someone else in the family or to someone in general.  Nobody’s going to want to 
live backed up to a graveling operation.  We’ve already had our peace and quiet 
somewhat compromised and that’s been going on for years.  It’s one thing when 
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they’re on the other side of Route 5 and it’s another thing when they’re in your 
backyard, so to speak.  We only have so much buffer between us.   
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One other concern, and we have many obviously, there are breast works on that 
property.  I do wonder, has the County or has the Parks Department mapped out 
all the breast works and made sure they were protected? That’s Civil War 
battlefield property.  Up until several years ago, we could kick up bullets with our 
feet on our property.  Major battles were fought right in that area. 
 
Structural stability is another thing. That’s why I said we’ve spent the last few 
years renovating his home place and now we have equipment much closer to our 
property than we’ve had in the past. We really don’t know what the implications 
are for that. 
 
Property value. What does that do?  It’s what we have; it’s all we have.  It’s 
already been greatly compromised.  I’ve been on the property for 30 years.  
Marvin’s been there for 60.  We already have the Colonial Pipeline running under 
our property and we have high-voltage wires running across the most beautiful 
part of the property to service people in Chesterfield because we were deemed 
to be the best place to put it because we’re out there by ourselves, basically.  Not 
too many people around, not too many people to upset. We just feel like 
sometimes we get one thing after another. I would feel like when you have all 
these things that are compromising your property, we should at least get some 
kind of tax break or something or other.  
 
I was wondering why we were not informed before the bridge was built so that we 
could register our opinion and concerns before a bridge was ever built across.  
Once someone puts that kind of money into building something that obviously is 
for a specific use—Why now?  Why wait to inform us now? 
 
Mr. Nunnally - That bridge was approved, I think, two years ago, 
ma’am.  I think it was advertised that they were going to build a bridge there and 
this Board approved it. 
 
Ms. Marshall - We got no letter. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Excuse me.  As far as tax breaks are concerned, this 
Board has nothing to do with that. 
 
Ms. Marshall - I understand.  In general, I’m saying that our property 
has been used by the County for everyone else’s benefit and we’ve been 
expected to give and give and give.  A little consideration would have been nice 
and it would have been nice, as an adjoining property owner, to have received 
some sort of notice. We did not know about the bridge. We did not receive a 
letter. We were not asked. We were not informed by either Vulcan or by the 
County. 
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Mr. Kirkland - Mr. Blankinship, are they adjacent landowners? 
 
Ms. Marshall - Yes we are. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yes sir and they were notified of this hearing. 
 
Ms. Marshall - No sir, we—Oh, this hearing.  When the bridge went 
across, we were not. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - The 2005 case? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - I couldn’t say for certain.  They certainly should have 
been. 
 
Ms. Marshall - We certainly weren’t.  Neither were Peggy or Mary 
Marshall, who are my sister-in-laws, who also live on what was the Marshall 
farm. Nor was Lee Gauling, whose stepfather is here to speak on her behalf. 
 
Mr. Wright - Mr. Blankinship, I’d like for you to go back in the 
record and check that. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - All right, we will. 
 
Mr. Wright - You would have certified letters as notification, 
wouldn’t you? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yes sir, we would. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - What specifically about the operation, the mining 
operation now is bothersome to you? 
 
Ms. Marshall - Probably the most bothersome to me is going to be 
the noise levels as they increase.  Well, the noise levels now. We’ve been able to 
hear the graveling operations forever.  The noise levels are certainly a concern.  
Any structural compromising is a concern. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Have you had any structural problems with your home 
because of the operation? 
 
Ms. Marshall - We have a very good foundation and we have a brick 
structure. Thus far, we’ve had very little problem.  That does not mean that will 
remain that way. 
 
Mr. Marshall - How close is the graveling operation going to be to 
our back door?  We have had no contact with anyone describing any of it to us 
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and I’ve been living there since 1946.   We had right much at the beginning with 
the Curles Neck property, discussion with them, but it’s been sold a couple of 
times. Since the graveling operation has started, we haven’t had any contact.  As 
my wife said, it came across the road this past spring and we have not received 
any notification of that. 
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Ms. Dwyer - Where exactly is your home on this map, or is it on 
this map? 
 
Mr. Marshall - You can’t quite see it. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - What is your address? 
 
Ms. Marshall - 4961 Long Bridge Road. 
 
Mr. Marshall - It starts at 4883, 4939, 4945, and 4961.  It’s all part of 
the original home place within the family. 
 
Ms. Marshall - And the undeveloped property behind 4883 and the 
other two before you get to 4961. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - All of them are on Long Bridge? 
 
Mr. Marshall - Yes.  It starts right at the corner of the Curles Neck 
property and goes east on Long Bridge Road. 
 
Ms. Harris - How close is the bridge they constructed to your 
property? 
 
Mr. Marshall - The way the crow flies, about a mile, but down Long 
Bridge Road and come back around on Route 5, it’s probably three. 
 
Ms. Marshall - That is why we were completely unaware of the 
bridge until one day we decided on a Sunday afternoon to go eat and we went 
that way on Route 5 and discovered there was a bridge there. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Is the bridge a problem for you? 
 
Ms. Marshall - The bridge itself is not a problem. The bridge was just 
an indication that there was a lot being done about which we were uninformed. 
 
Mr. Marshall - If you look at the green property there, 2005, going 
north, our place is right north of that.   
 
Ms. Dwyer - What they’re asking for today is the purple area, 
which would be on the other side of the current mining area from— 
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Mr. Wright - That would be away from where you are. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - It looks like it won’t be within half a mile of you. 
 
Mr. Marshall - Well, we didn’t know that until we got here; that’s part 
of the problem.  If you find a copy of the letter we should have received, I would 
like to see it. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - The one from two years ago? 
 
Mr. Marshall - Yes. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Okay.  We’ll do that. 
 
Mr. Marshall - That would be four different properties. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Have you had any problems with your wells since the 
mining began? 
 
Mr. Marshall - No, we have not.  The first place and the fourth place 
we had deep wells. The two sisters in between, they have shallow wells. They 
had some problems, but I don’t know if it’s anything to do with the graveling.   
 
Mr. Blankinship - There is a condition on the use permit requiring that if 
there is any damage to wells they have to make you whole. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I will also say they way it’s worded—Which one is 
that? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Eighteen. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - The way it’s worded, the property owners have to 
present evidence that the extraction is a contributing factor to the well problem.  
The burden is on the landowner, the way the condition is written, to show that the 
well is dry because of the excavation. 
 
Mr. Marshall - I understand that. 
 
Ms. Marshall - That’s pretty standard and we understand that and 
that’s part of the concern.  Part of the concern is—We’re homeowners.  We like 
in an agricultural area.  Obviously, not the most prosperous part of Henrico 
County.  Both of my sister-in-laws have had trouble with their shallow wells.  How 
are they supposed to spend the money to get someone to prove that their well 
problems have been due to extraction from the land behind us?  It is a big burden 
for a small homeowner.  Part of the reason we have a deep well is because we 
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felt like with development coming along, it’s much better to do that.  They could 
not afford it. 
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Mr. Kirkland - Mr. Marshall, how long have you lived at your present 
location? 
 
Mr. Marshall - Since ’46. 
 
Ms. Marshall - That’s the home place.  His mother lived there before 
she passed away, but we were still on property that was part of the home place. 
We simply moved back to the house itself. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Any other questions for Mr. and Ms. Marshall?  Hear 
none, we thank you for coming.  Mr. Lewis, you want to rebut?  Oh, I’m sorry. 
Excuse me, sir. 
 
Mr. Stephens - My name is Bill Stephens and I’m Wendy Gaulding’s 
stepfather.  She can’t be here this morning, so I got this dropped on me pretty 
recently.  I’m very familiar with the mining operations of sand and gravel.  I retired 
with 30 years under my belt.  I’m mostly concerned about the well problems. I 
understand they have monitoring wells, but I also understand that they’re not 
sharing that information with any of the homeowners or with the County.  If their 
wells go bad, my stepdaughter could not afford to have another well drilled. She 
has a deep well, but if something happens to it, there’s no way she could ever—
I’d have to drill another well or fix it.  I think they need to share that information 
that they get from these monitoring wells.  With the homeowners that it affects, I 
don’t think they’re going to like doing that.  I think even the Board needs to have 
that information available to them so you can determine maybe what’s going on 
without these people having to hire a hydrologist and competing with Vulcan 
Materials to get that information and help them with that.  I don’t know, again, 
how far they intend to go.  I don’t know where the boundaries occur on that 
property.  Her property’s not shown on the map.  I don’t know if they intend to 
ever go farther towards the east.  I guess it would be on Long Bridge.  Or if that is 
the extent of their reserves up through there, I just don’t know. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - They are required to renew the permit every two 
years. 
 
Mr. Stephens - I’m well aware of that. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Any time they wanted to move that boundary, there 
would be a new hearing. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Also there’s a condition in the case, #23, that every 
year they make a report to this Board.  It normally goes to Mr. Blankinship.  I’m 
sure that if there’s any well information, it would be in this report. 
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Mr. Blankinship - I don’t see it mentioned. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - We could add that to the conditions. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - We could certainly require them to show that each 
year. 
 
Mr. Stephens - I think the homeowners do need to have that 
information available to them if it’s done by an outside firm other than Vulcan’s 
foreman or somebody going out and measuring those wells.  I guess that’s about 
all I have. 
 
Ms. Harris - Mr. Stephens, how large a community, residential 
community is in this area? 
 
 
Mr. Stephens - How large is the community? 
 
Ms. Harris - Yes, how many residents, about how many 
homeowners. 
 
Mr. Stephens - I only know the Marshall’s and my stepdaughter.  She 
just moved there and we’ve known the Marshall’s for several years. 
 
Ms. Harris - Do you know how many homes are in the 
neighborhood? 
 
Mr. Stephens - I have no idea.  It’s not a great deal of homes, I don’t 
think.  You should have a map of it.  They should have included some of that 
property on their drawing there. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Any other questions?  Thank you, sir.   Do you have a 
short rebuttal, Mr. Lewis? 
 
Mr. Lewis - Yes.  I’m sorry that they weren’t notified in ’05 when 
we first applied for this site.  Just to let everybody know, we take tests on those 
wells every month.  We’d be glad to send those to Mr. Blankinship.  If he wants 
them once a year, if he wants them twice a year, we’ll be glad to share the 
information. That’s why we’re taking it, so everybody’s assured that we’re not 
affecting the groundwater. As far as timing, we finish mining in this area and 
they’re going to be starting reclamation probably within the next couple of 
months.  The activity as far as hearing equipment and probably the worst thing is 
probably the beeping noise when they’re backing up, which we have to have 
because of OSHA.  Is that what you usually hear, the beeping?  That’s usually 
the worst.  We still have to reclaim this area and that will be starting, like I say, 
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probably in the next couple of months.  It’ll probably take a year to reclaim that.  
Once the majority of it’s reclaimed, we will have some work because these two 
drainage systems are tied in with this wetlands work that we’re doing down here.  
For the most part, most of the work is finished in that area so we’ll be further 
away from the neighbors to our north, so there’ll be less impact from visual and 
sound especially.  The wells we’ll continue to monitor. We’ll provide you with that 
information.  Structurally, like somebody suggested, we do no blasting so it’s not 
like a rock quarry and the problems that they had with structural and shaking of 
homes.  The bridge is a temporary bridge, since they weren’t here in ’05. It’s 
going to be removed when this mining on the north side has ceased.  In fact, that 
was the bridge that was at Shirley Plantation? 
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Mr. Brazzle - Right, that’s right. 
 
Mr. Lewis - It was moved from there to this site.  Any other 
questions that you might have, we can address those. Do we have a map, a GIS 
that can show where they’re located so we can have an idea? 
 
Ms. Dwyer - What’s the buffer on your property between the 
operation and the property line, the actual mining operation? 
 
Mr. Brazzle - If I may, the section of Haul Road that you see in red 
north of Route 5 is about a mile long.  There are several hundred feet—I couldn’t 
give you an exact measure, but there are several hundred feet of forested non-
disturbed buffer on the north side of the property. When we mined south of Route 
5, we maintained a 100-foot tree buffer along Route 5, which I believe is required 
by Code as well. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - In UP-2-2005, there’s a 100-foot buffer on your own 
property between the mining operation and the nearest property line. 
 
Mr. Lewis - That’s with the RPA. We have RPA along that creek.  
I’m not sure, is the creek the property line. 
 
Mr Brazzle - No, the creek is not the property line.  The property 
line is shown in the red and extends further north of the creek. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - On this map, the property line for Curles Neck is in 
red? 
 
Mr. Brazzle - That is correct. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Okay, so, the Marshall’s and anyone else would live 
on the other side of Long Bridge? 
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Mr. Lewis - I’m not sure where their property is.  You’re up in 
here?  Okay.  The large power line that goes across?  The power line runs 
through here, so you’re talking about probably close to there. 
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Mr. Blankinship - Unless I’m mistaken, the triangle to the top right 
corner there is actually where the Marshall’s property is.  It is shown on the map 
there, but just barely.  That’s the Marshall’s property there. 
 
Mr. Lewis - Can you get the GIS and pull the distance from there 
to— 
 
Mr. Blankinship - It’s about 3300 feet. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Does Curles Neck own from the mining operation to 
that red line? 
 
Mr. Lewis - Curles Neck is all in here. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Okay. 
 
Mr. Lewis - All of that area.  I was thinking they were up here near 
Long Bridge, but they’re right here.   
 
Mr. Blankinship - I’m not sure where Mr. Stephens’ or Ms. Gaulding’s 
property is.  Oh, okay, in the same little— 
 
Mr. Lewis - As far as the Civil War activities, we have not seen 
any breastworks here.  In the research that I’ve done, they came across right 
here and then moved up towards Long Bridge.  There were some gun 
emplacements in here, but we know of no activity over in what used to be called 
“the slash,” back in those days and still referred to on some of the USGS. 
 
Mr. Brazzle - When we first started working on UP-2-2005, we had 
an archeological survey conducted by [unintelligible] and the results of that were 
shared with the Parks Service. The only breastworks that we found were in this 
area about here, which we are not impacting. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - What was the distance again, Mr. Blankinship, I think 
you ventured a guess, between the mining opoeration as delineated on our map 
and the property line where these residents live? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - It looks like 3,361 feet on the GIS. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - That’s a pretty good size. 
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Mr. Blankinship - I’m not sure of my end point, but that’s the distance 
between the two points that I’ve put on this map. 
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Ms. Harris - Do you currently own the Curles Neck Farm or do you 
just have mining rights? 
 
Mr. Lewis - We just have mining rights. 
 
Ms. Harris - Okay. Aren’t there historical markers all over Curles 
Neck? 
 
Mr. Lewis - There’s a marker out here near the entrance that 
you’re probably talking about, where the two white columns are, which is right in 
here. There’s a marker right there and I think it’s about Bacon’s Rebellion.   
 
Ms. Dwyer - That’s not Civil War. 
 
Mr. Lewis - No, that was way before.  That was Indians uprising 
and Bacon— 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Prior to that, yes. 
 
Mr. Lewis - Dissatisfied with the governor so he got his own band 
up and took care of business and got in big trouble with the government.  There 
was an article in the paper about it a couple weeks ago. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Any other questions?  Hear none, that completes the 
case. That you for coming.  All right, Mr. Blankinship.  UP-47-2006. 
 
DECISION 
 
Mr. Kirkland - I move we approve it. 
 
Mr. Wright - Second. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I have a suggestion for a condition on that, that the 
well monitoring data be submitted to the County. The applicant said they’d be 
glad to do that. 
 
Mr. Wright - Yeah, he said he had no problem doing it. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Right. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Annually or? 
 
Mr. Kirkland - How about quarterly? 
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Ms. Dwyer - Quarterly, I think. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - I’ll accept Ms. Dwyer’s about the well monitoring. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Motion by Mr. Kirkland, seconded by Mr. Wright. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - The applicant did state that they’d be willing to do 
that. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Yes.  I think he seems very workable. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Could we add just a little discussion on this since 
there was a fair amount of opposition.  I’d just like to say that the operation 
appears to be over 3,000 feet from the nearest property line, which is a 
considerable distance.  While there may be some noise, it doesn’t seem to be 
any indication that it’s a clear nuisance to the level that we would need to 
reconsider this particular application.  That seemed to be the most serious 
concern.  Apparently, there are no structural issues, there’s just concern that 
there might be some negative impact.  There’s no indication that there has been 
or, in fact, will be. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - All in favor say aye.  Opposed?  So approved. 
 
After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Mr. Kirkland, seconded by 
Mr. Wright, the Board granted application UP-47-2006 for a conditional use 
permit pursuant to Sections 24-103 and 24-52(d) to extract materials from the 
earth at 4705 Curles Neck Road (Parcels 833-678-0193, 833-680-7719 and 836-
667-5251).  The Board granted the use permit subject to the following conditions: 
 
1.  This use permit is subject to all requirements of Section 24-103 of Chapter 24 
of the County Code. 
 
2.  Before beginning any work, the applicant shall provide a financial guaranty in 
an amount of $3,000 per acre for each acre of land to be disturbed, for a total of 
$378,300, guaranteeing that the land will be restored to a reasonably level and 
drainable condition. This permit does not become valid until the financial 
guaranty has been approved by the County Attorney. The financial guaranty may 
provide for termination after 90 days notice in writing to the County. In the event 
of termination, this permit shall be void, and work incident thereto shall cease. 
Within the next 90 days the applicant shall restore the land as provided for under 
the conditions of this use permit. Termination of such financial guaranty shall not 
relieve the applicant from its obligation to indemnify the County of Henrico for any 
breach of the conditions of this use permit. If this condition is not satisfied within 
90 days of approval, the use permit shall be void. 
 

December 21, 2006  Board of Zoning Appeals  45



3.  Before beginning any work, the applicant shall submit erosion control plans to 
the Department of Public Works for review and approval. Throughout the life of 
the operation, the applicant shall continuously satisfy the Department of Public 
Works that erosion control procedures are properly maintained, and shall furnish 
plans and bonds that the department deems necessary. The applicant shall 
provide certification from a licensed professional engineer that dams, 
embankments and sediment control structures meet the approved design criteria 
as set forth by the State. If this condition is not satisfied within 90 days of 
approval, the use permit shall be void. 
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4.  The applicant shall maintain a mine license from the Virginia Department of 
Mines, Minerals and Energy.  
 
5.  The areas approved for mining under this permit shall be delineated on the 
ground by five-foot-high metal posts at least five inches in diameter and painted 
in alternate one foot stripes of red and white.  These posts shall be so located as 
to clearly define the area in which the mining is permitted.   
 
6.  In the event that the Board's approval of this use permit is appealed, all 
conditions requiring action within 90 days will be deemed satisfied if the required 
actions are taken within 90 days of final action on the appeal. 
 
7.  The applicant shall comply with the Chesapeake Bay Preservation Act and all 
state and local regulations administered under such act applicable to the 
property, and shall furnish to the Planning Department copies of all reports 
required by such act or regulations. 
 
8.  Hours of operation shall be from 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. when Daylight 
Savings Time is in effect, and from 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. at all other times. 
 
9.  No operations of any kind are to be conducted at the site on Sundays or 
national holidays. 
 
10.  Access to the property shall be from the established entrance onto New 
Market Road. Traffic into and out of the property north of New Market Road shall 
cross New Market Road on the private bridge maintained by the operator. 
Excavated material shall be removed from the property through the operator's 
established loading area on the James River. 
 
11.  The applicant shall maintain a sign at the entrance to the mining site stating 
the name of the operator, the use permit number, the mine license number, and 
the telephone number of the operator.  The sign shall be 12 square feet in area 
and the letters shall be three inches high. 
 
12.  The applicant shall maintain "No Trespassing" signs every 250 feet along the 
perimeter of the property. The letters shall be three inches high.  
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13.   The applicant shall provide a flagman to control traffic from the site onto the 
public road, with the flagman yielding the right of way to the public road traffic at 
all times.  This flagman will be required whenever the Division of Police deems 
necessary. 
 
14.  All roads used in connection with this use permit shall be effectively treated 
with calcium chloride or other wetting agents to eliminate any dust nuisance. 
 
15.   Trucks shall be loaded in a way to prevent overloading or spilling of 
materials of any kind on any public road. 
 
16.  The applicant shall maintain the property, fences, and roads in a safe and 
secure condition indefinitely, or convert the property to some other safe use. 
 
17.  If, in the course of its preliminary investigation or operations, the applicant 
discovers evidence of cultural or historical resources, or an endangered species, 
or a significant habitat, it shall notify appropriate authorities and provide them 
with an opportunity to investigate the site. The applicant shall report the results of 
any such investigation to the Planning Department. 
 
18.  If water wells located on surrounding properties are adversely affected, and 
the extraction operations on this site are suspected as the cause, the effected 
property owners may present to the Board evidence that the extraction operation 
is a contributing factor. After a hearing by the Board, this use permit may be 
revoked or suspended, and the operator may be required to correct the problem. 
 
19.  Open and vertical excavations having a depth of 10 feet or more, for a period 
of more than 30 days, shall be effectively sloped to a 2:1 slope or flatter to 
protect the public safety. 
 
20.  Topsoil shall not be removed from any part of the property outside of the 
area in which mining is authorized.  Sufficient topsoil shall be stockpiled on the 
property for respreading in a layer with five inches of minimum depth. All topsoil 
shall be stockpiled within the authorized mining area and provided with adequate 
erosion control protection. If the site does not yield sufficient topsoil, additional 
topsoil shall be brought to the site to provide the required five-inch layer of cover.  
All topsoil shall be treated with a mixture of seed, fertilizer, and lime as 
recommended by the County after soil tests have been provided to the County. 
 
21.  No offsite-generated materials shall be deposited on the mining site without 
prior written approval of the Director of Planning. To obtain such approval, the 
operator shall submit a request stating the origin, nature and quantity of material 
to be deposited, and certifying that no contaminated or hazardous material will be 
included. The material to be deposited on the site shall be limited to imperishable 
materials such as stone, bricks, tile, sand, gravel, soil, asphalt, concrete and like 
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materials, and shall not include any hazardous materials as defined by the 
Virginia Hazardous Waste Management Regulations. 
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22.  A superintendent, who shall be personally familiar with all the terms and 
conditions of Section 24-103 of Chapter 24 of the County Code, as well as the 
terms and conditions of this use permit, shall be present at the beginning and 
conclusion of operations each work day to see that all the conditions of the Code 
and this use permit are observed. 
 
23.  A progress report shall be submitted to the Board on or about January 31, 
2008 stating how much property has been mined to date of the report, the 
amount of land left to be mined, how much rehabilitation has been performed, 
when and how the remaining amount of land will be rehabilitated, and any other 
pertinent information about the operation that would be helpful to the Board. 
 
24.  Excavation shall be discontinued by January 31, 2009, and restoration 
accomplished by not later than January 31, 2010, unless a new permit is granted 
by the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 
25.  The rehabilitation of the property shall take place simultaneously with the 
mining process.  Rehabilitation shall not be considered completed until the mined 
area is covered completely with permanent vegetation. 
 
26.  Failure to comply with any of the foregoing conditions shall automatically 
void this permit. 
 
 
Affirmative: Dwyer, Harris, Kirkland, Nunnally, Wright 5 
Negative:        0 
Absent:        0 
 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Next case, Mr. Blankinship. 
 
UP-48-2006 GILLIES CREEK INDUSTRIAL RECYCLING, LLC 
requests a conditional use permit pursuant to Sections 24-103 and 24-52(d) to 
extract materials from the earth at 2980 Meadow Road (Parcel 843-720-7272), 
zoned A-1, Agricultural District (Varina). 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Is anyone else here interested in this case?  If so, 
please stand and raise your right hand. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Raise your right hand.  Do you swear the testimony 
you’re about to give is the truth and nothing but the truth so help you God? 
 
Mr. Bryant - I do. 
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Mr. Nunnally - Please state your name for the record, sir, and tell us 
what you’re requesting. 
 
Mr. Bryant - My name is Lou Bryant.  I’m the business manager for 
Gillies Creek and I’m here to request a renewal of our use permit to continue 
operations at Meadow Road. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Have we had any complaints, Mr. Blankinship, on this 
case prior to this on this site? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Not that I’m aware of.  I am not certain whether we 
have received the annual report from last year, it’s not attached. 
 
Mr. Bryant - The 2005 annual report?  I believe it’s been sent in.  
It’s sent in every month on a regular basis. The annual report should have been 
sent in conjunction with December’s monthly report, but I can confirm that for 
you. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Mr. Gidley will check the file while we speak. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Mr. Bryant, I’ve heard several people say that around 
your operation there you’re having a lot of mud out there on the road. 
 
Mr. Bryant - We had some problem with— 
 
Mr. Nunnally - They said you had a lot of mud on there and when the 
people come home from work or go to work, they get mud all over their cars and 
have to get them washed before they come home or have to get them washed 
before they go to work the next morning.  I drove down there yesterday and it’s 
just as clean as this office here, this room here.  I saw four or five trucks coming 
off Williamsburg Road.  You can’t take a left out of your operation, you have to go 
up to Dry Bridge, right? 
 
Mr. Bryant - Yes sir, that’s correct. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - It looks good.  I’m wondering where all these 
complaints are coming from unless you all had an inkling we were coming down 
there to look at it and went out there and got everything nice and spic and span. 
 
Mr. Bryant - Well, sometimes I wonder where the complaints are 
coming from as well.  I think we’re very diligent in our efforts to keep the road 
clean. Whenever we’re operating in there extensively, we always have a broom 
tractor on site and a water truck at our disposal to keep the road clean.  We’ve 
had some complaints in the past and I think we’ve responded as quickly and as 
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effectively as we can to address those problems.  I my opinion, I think we keep 
the road very clean for any type of construction operation. 
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Mr. Wright - Number 17 puts the burden on them to keep it clean. 
 
Mr. Bryant - If I may, I think some of the complaints—There have 
been several operators of this facility prior to us taking it over and I think that they 
created a very antagonistic relationship with the neighbors down there in the way 
they handled the operation. We sometimes are dealing with their previous sins, if 
you will, in not keeping the road clean and not doing the things they were 
supposed to be doing for the County and for the neighborhood. 
 
Mr. Wright - Describe to us what action you take to keep the road 
clean.  Are they monitored daily or tell us how you do that. 
 
Mr. Bryant - Yes sir.  They’re monitored daily. We have a lot of our 
own trucks that use the facility so we’re always checking on how the road looks, 
especially on days we’ve had rain or it’s been muddy from previous days of rain. 
There’s always a broom tractor on site there when we’re operating in the pit and 
we have water trucks that we use in conjunction with those when they’re 
necessary. 
 
Mr. Wright - Do you try to get the tires clean before they leave the 
property? 
 
Mr. Bryant - Yes sir. There’s a truck wash on the property. 
 
Mr. Wright - If they’re cleaned before they leave, how could there 
be mud on Meadow Road? 
 
Mr. Bryant - Unless they’re cleaned by hand, it’s impossible 
always to get all of the dirt out.  A lot of times what we get is dust on the road. 
The road is paved from Meadow Road a distance of about I believe 600 feet into 
the property. From there, it is construction stone #3 entrance material.  So, you’ll 
pull dirt or dust from the rock onto the pavement and we have to go back and 
clean it back up to the rock in kind of an ongoing process. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - When do you have the operation? 
 
Mr. Bryant - I believe it’s 7 to 5:30 Monday through Friday and 7 to 
noon on Saturday.  That’s correct. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Is there any way that you could wash that road down 
after the operations?  Do you have any kind of spraying outfit down there for that, 
a water sprayer? 
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Mr. Bryant - We do it with a water truck, high-pressure water off of 
a truck. 
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Mr. Nunnally - Can you do that several times a week to make sure? 
 
Mr. Bryant - We do that often when we’re really in there heavy, 
especially if there’s a lot of traffic through there. Generally on heavy traffic days, 
the truck will be by at least once a day. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Do you work there every day?  Do they go in and out 
every day? 
 
Mr. Bryant - For the most part, yes sir. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Some days it’s just heavier than others. 
 
Mr. Bryant - That’s correct. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - This is a continuation of an earlier permit.  This covers 
A-1, A-2, and B, is that correct, what you’ve designated the mining areas to be? 
 
Mr. Bryant - Yes ma’am. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Are those the only mining areas there? 
 
Mr. Bryant - Yes. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - A-1— 
 
Mr. Bryant - A-2 and B. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - The only reclamation plan I see is for B.  Is that 
because the other two have been reclaimed already or? 
 
Mr. Bryant - Where we are—I don’t know how clear this is. This is 
A-1 here, that’s A-2, there’s B.  A-1 and A-2 have been fully refilled with dirt at 
this point and are awaiting seeding, topsoil spreading and reseeding. Right now, 
we’re in B right here in this area right here. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Okay, let me stop you there.  Mining areas A-1 and A-
2 have been reclaimed how?  Have they been filled with construction materials? 
 
Mr. Bryant - They’ve been filled with material that we consistently 
bring in there. The topsoil has not been re-spread at this point. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - How high is the mound? 
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Mr. Bryant - I do not have an elevation.  I couldn’t tell you an 
elevation. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - A guess? 
 
Mr. Bryant - Above sea level or in relation to the adjoining 
property? 
 
Ms. Dwyer - In relation to the adjoining property. 
 
Mr. Bryant - It is slightly higher than the adjoining property.  One of 
the conditions is that we cannot throw water on our neighbors, which, the way we 
have graded the fill prevents that from happening.  All the water does not and will 
continue to be channeled to the sediment basin here in the, on this picture the 
southeast corner of the property. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - How high is the reclaimed— 
 
Mr. Bryant - I don’t know that I could hazard a guess, I really don’t. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - More than 50? 
 
Mr. Bryant - No, not more than 50. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Less than 25? 
 
Mr. Bryant - Yeah, less than 25 above our adjoining neighbors.  I 
think that’s safe to say. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Okay.  I understand it’s an estimate at this point, but I 
just want a ballpark. 
 
Mr. Bryant - Okay. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - The staff reported noted that there was no information 
provided by you as to the reclaimed height of mining area B. 
 
Mr. Bryant - That’s correct because on the approved plans, there 
are no finished elevations, finished grades specified.  The only real conditions, as 
I said, were that we couldn’t divert water onto our neighbor’s property. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I would like to know what the reclaimed height would 
be. 
 
Mr. Bryant - Okay. 
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Ms. Dwyer - What the elevation would be.  I think that’s important 
to know.  We don’t want Mt. Trashmore. 
 
Mr. Bryant - Right, I understand. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - In isolated places all over the County. 
 
Mr. Bryant - Certainly. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Even though it would be, it needs to be reclaimed and 
useable as something in the future.  If we had steep slopes, if we have high 
elevation, it’s not useable for anything so that’s a concern. 
 
Mr. Bryant - I understand. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Mr. Bryant, I don’t know if you saw our staff report or 
not, but the pictures—We have a picture of I guess that is the road entering into 
the property.  Is the picture above that part of the reclaimed area?  Is that the 
mound? 
 
Mr. Bryant - This picture here, sir? 
 
Mr. Kirkland - There’s one above it on our sheets, so I guess it 
would be the next one above it on there.   
 
Ms. Dwyer - It shows a mound. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Is that part of the reclaimed area there? 
 
Mr. Bryant - It doesn’t give much of a reference point.  I’m trying to 
think where that is. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Our picture looks different than that, believe it or not. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - It shows a little more of an area. 
 
Mr. Bryant - Okay.  All right. This is the very end of A-1. To the left 
is the lake that was there when we first moved in.  All the fill you see to the right 
of that photograph was already in place when we started operating, had been 
done by the previous operators. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - All right. 
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Mr. Bryant - I would estimate the rise from the top of that slope to 
the top of the slope where we’re currently working probably is no more than six to 
eight feet, over the distance of probably 400 to 500 feet. 
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Ms. Dwyer - The important comparison is the height of this rise in 
relation to adjacent property. 
 
Mr. Bryant - I couldn’t tell you what that is; I really don’t know. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - What should we do, Mr. Blankinship, if we don’t have 
the data that we need to make a decision, that is the reclaimed elevation of 
mining area B? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - I guess a deferral would be the normal course. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - When does this expire? 
 
Mr. Bryant - I think today is two years on the nose from the last 
issuance. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - If we don’t approve it today then you can’t mine. 
 
Mr. Bryant - Then I have a problem.  Yes ma’am, that’s correct. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - The staff report does say, “Applicant should provide 
information as to final elevation of the project upon completing of the 
reclamation.” 
 
Mr. Bryant - I did not get a copy of that.  I reviewed it this morning 
before I came in.  This is the first time, I think, the staff has asked for what the 
finished elevation will be. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - If we set a limit on the height for the reclaimed area 
and the applicant’s not satisfied with that, could the applicant come in and 
petition to amend that? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yes ma’am. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Actually, we can’t impose a condition unless the 
applicant agrees, is that right? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - That’s correct. 
 
Mr. Wright - If they’re excavating, why should they have a problem 
with elevation? 
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Mr. Blankinship - We have had some applications recently, as I’m sure 
you’ll recall, where the reclamation plan showed a great deal of filling. 
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Mr. Wright - They’re bringing in stuff off of the site. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - They’re going to fill this.  We have no idea how high 
it’s going to be. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - We certainly ought to control that. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - I think at this point, there’s more money in filling than 
there is in digging.  That’s the way market conditions are today. 
 
Ms. Harris - What about Condition 23?  Doesn’t that deal with 
excavation? 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Yes.  Once they finish excavating and they fill it and 
they create a mound, how high will the mound be is my concern.   
 
Ms. Harris - You’re concerned with reclamation rather than— 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Yes. 
 
Ms. Harris - Okay. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Which would be 29.  Do you have an elevation, Mr. 
Blankinship that we’ve used in the past?  I know this has come up before. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - As you were saying, we normally tie it to the adjoining 
property. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I think if we pass it today, we need to have some 
agreement about the elevation. 
 
Mr. Bryant - Let me make sure that one thing is clear.  Even if the 
center line of the property is elevated over the adjoining property, we understand 
we have to tie in at the elevation of the adjoining property and we will tie in at that 
existing elevation.  We can divert the water and control the sheet flow of the 
water into all the necessary sediment traps. We’re not going to wind up with a 
wall or a cliff, so to speak, next to our neighbors. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Because you’re diverting the water into the sediment 
basin. 
 
Mr. Bryant - Correct. 
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Ms. Dwyer - That’s not my only concern.  That’s important that you 
not be changing the grade of the land so water’s being dumped on the neighbors, 
but also we need the condition of the land to be in a state that it is useable for 
agriculture or some other purpose. 
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Mr. Bryant - I understand. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - We don’t want a big mound. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Mr. Blankinship, what’s the recommended slope?  
Like in the last case, they talked 5 to 1. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Five to one, I believe Mr. Brazzle said is the maximum 
that they felt comfortable mowing on.  I think the standard condition is 3 to 1. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Right. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Two to one is the temporary. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Five to one’s a pretty slight slope. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - It is. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yeah, that’s rolling farmland. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Right. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Two to one is the maximum that we’ll allow for a 
temporary right after they’ve cut. 
 
Mr. Wright - Shouldn’t we try to maintain the elevation that’s there 
before they excavate?  Shouldn’t that be our objective? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - That’s been done in other cases, yes sir. 
 
Mr. Wright - So you don’t change the character of the land. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I can go with that. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - I really think it should fall to applicant to present a 
plan for the Board to review. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Instead of us trying to pick something. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - That’s my position. 
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Ms. Dwyer - Do you have any suggestions as to what slope and 
elevation? 
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Mr. Bryant - I would have to go back and have it surveyed by our 
surveying crew and find out where we are now in terms of elevation in relation to 
the neighbors.  I know that this site was originally started as a sand and gravel 
mine in the 40’s or 50’s.  I don’t know of anyone that has any real idea of what it 
looked like prior to the operation beginning. We’d probably have to find that out, 
too. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - It seems to me we should have more in terms of a 
reclamation plan than we’ve got here. 
 
Mr. Bryant - Yes ma’am. 
 
Ms. Harris - Don’t they have 90 days before they would have to 
actually cease operation?  I was looking at some of the conditions, if the 
condition is not satisfied within 90 days of approval. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - That’s a good point. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - We could approve this for a short period of time. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Subject to review of the final plans within 90 days. 
 
Ms. Harris - That’s within the guidelines here on several 
conditions. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I’m trying to figure out a way where we can get the 
information we need but you don’t have to cease operations. 
 
Mr. Bryant - I understand. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - We can approve it for six months, three months and 
then you could come back after that time with a reclamation plan and present it to 
us and then we could consider it for a two year time. 
 
Mr. Wright - How long will it take to do what we need to have, to 
produce what we need to have? 
 
Mr. Bryant - I think six months would be reasonable. 
 
Mr. Wright - In other words, it wouldn’t do any good just to defer 
this for a month. 
 
Mr. Bryant - No sir. 
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Mr. Kirkland - It wouldn’t give you enough time. 
 
Mr. Bryant - I don’t think 30 days would be enough time for us to 
get the information that you need together. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - His present permit expires today, so if we defer, what 
impact would that have?  Would he have to cease operation because he no 
longer has— 
 
Mr. Wright - We shouldn’t defer it for more than 30 days, I don’t 
think.  Go ahead and approve it for a shorter period of time. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I’ll only approve it for six months. 
 
Mr. Wright - What do you think of that? 
 
Mr. Bryant - I think we can work with that. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - What we have now as far as reclamation, so we don’t 
want it to be—Let’s say it cannot be filled above, what, the existing. What is the 
existing elevation? 
 
Mr. Bryant - The grade of the neighbor’s property? 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Yes.  For the next six months. 
 
Mr. Wright - I wasn’t aware.  I thought they were having a problem 
getting it up to grade; I didn’t realize that we’re using this to bring the materials in 
to raise the elevation. We should be careful about that. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - What if we do this.  We approve it today for six 
months with the condition that it cannot be filled above the exiting grade.   Does it 
have an existing—The existing grade of the adjacent property? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Okay. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Okay? Then in six months, you can come back and 
give us a reclamation plan.  If you want to raise it above that, give us some detail 
so we know what we’re working with. 
 
Mr. Bryant - Okay.  Really, the most important thing that I think 
you need from the reclamation plan is what the finished elevation’s going to be 
across the entire site. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - That’s correct. 
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Mr. Bryant - Okay.  I understand. 
 
Mr. Wright - At the same time, you meet the existing grades of 
adjacent landowners, please continue to drain the water towards the sediment 
basin. 
 
Mr. Bryant - Right.  I understand that as well. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - That’s already a condition. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yes, that’s a requirement. 
 
Mr. Wright - I just want to make sure. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I know A-1 and A-2 have already been mounded, 
right? 
 
Mr. Bryant - They’ve already been—Yes. There’s no more dirt 
going into that area at all. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - So, we’re really just talking about B. 
 
Mr. Bryant - That’s correct.  Let me ask you this question. Is the 
County going to try to require that we cut dirt out if we need to? 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Of A? 
 
Mr. Bryant - Of A or A-1? 
 
\Ms. Dwyer - I don’t think I would propose that because it’s already 
been done and you have not been held to any other standard at this point. 
 
Mr. Bryant - Okay.   
 
Ms. Dwyer - I think we could only legitimately hold you to a 
standard— 
 
Mr. Bryant - Moving forward from today. 
 
Mr. Wright - I don’t think that would be fair to go back. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - We are just talking about the reclamation of B. 
 
Mr. Bryant - Understood.  Okay.  Well, thank you. 
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Ms. Dwyer - All right. So, you’re agreeable to that. 2692 
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Mr. Bryant - In six months, we can put a plan together for you for 
the remaining 50% left to be filled at B and bring that to you. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Let us know the status of A. 
 
Mr. Bryant - Oh, yes, I understand.  In terms of where the 
reclamation is. Right. 
 
Mr. Wright - Is the grass growing yet. 
 
Mr. Bryant - Correct.  I understand. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - How high it is, what the contours of the reclaimed land 
are in relation to the surrounding property.  
 
Ms. Harris - When you said the existing grades, you are talking 
about the upcoming grade for this parcel.  In other words, I’m hearing two things.   
Ms. Dwyer said she’s dealing with the exiting grades, should not be— 
 
Ms. Dwyer - For six months. 
 
Ms. Harris - You’re talking about future grades, are you not? 
 
Mr. Bryant - As I understand, what we’re saying is moving forward, 
any fill left to be done will be to the elevation of the adjacent property owner.  Any 
filling already done, will be left as-is.  In six months, we’ll come back with the final 
reclamation plan on A, A-1, and B, with new maps and elevations for you. 
 
Ms. Harris - Nicely stated. 
 
Mr. Wright - Get that, Mr. Blankinship? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yes sir. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - You make that as a motion, Ms. Dwyer? 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I will when we— 
 
Mr. Nunnally - This is the last case.  Let’s make it a motion. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - All right. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - If you will. 
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Ms. Dwyer - I move we approve this case for a six month period of 
time with the conditions as stated by the applicant. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - It’s all in the records. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yes it is. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - In the record. 
 
Mr. Wright - Second. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - One thing I want to add, too, is, like I said, I was very 
pleased by what I found down at your place yesterday, but I’m also concerned 
about the neighbors around there.  I want to put you on notice.  I’m not 
threatening you, now, but I’m going to put you on notice that we’re going to be 
checking you.  Mr. Blankinship will probably be coming down every other day.  
I’m just kidding. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - The neighbors must be calling someone else, 
because they’re not calling the Planning Department. They must be calling 
environmental. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Well, maybe so. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Or they’re calling Gillies Creek which, of course, is 
what they should be doing. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - All right. We have a motion by Ms. Dwyer.  You got 
little note in there, too, Mr. Blankinship?   
 
Mr. Blankinship - Did you want that to be part of the motion? 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Yes sir.  I want it to be checked on. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - All right.  Yes sir. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - You second both of them? 
 
Mr. Wright - I second it. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Second by Mr. Wright.  All in favor, say aye.  
Opposed?  Been approved. 
 
Mr. Bryant - Thank you very much.   Merry Christmas. 
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Ms. Dwyer - Thank you. 
 
After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Ms. Dwyer, seconded by 
Mr. Wright, the Board granted application UP-48-2006 for a conditional use 
permit to extract materials from the earth at 2980 Meadow Road (Parcel 843-
720-7272) The Board granted the temporary use permit subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1.  This use permit is subject to all requirements of Section 24-103 of Chapter 24 
of the County Code. 
 
2.  Before beginning any work, the applicant shall provide a financial guaranty in 
an amount of $3,000 per acre for each acre of land to be disturbed, for a total of 
$40,170, guaranteeing that the land will be restored to a reasonably level and 
drainable condition. This permit does not become valid until the financial 
guaranty has been approved by the County Attorney. The financial guaranty may 
provide for termination after 90 days notice in writing to the County. In the event 
of termination, this permit shall be void, and work incident thereto shall cease. 
Within the next 90 days the applicant shall restore the land as provided for under 
the conditions of this use permit. Termination of such financial guaranty shall not 
relieve the applicant from its obligation to indemnify the County of Henrico for any 
breach of the conditions of this use permit. If this condition is not satisfied within 
90 days of approval, the use permit shall be void. 
 
3.  Before beginning any work, the applicant shall submit erosion control plans to 
the Department of Public Works for review and approval. Throughout the life of 
the operation, the applicant shall continuously satisfy the Department of Public 
Works that erosion control procedures are properly maintained, and shall furnish 
plans and bonds that the department deems necessary. The applicant shall 
provide certification from a licensed professional engineer that dams, 
embankments and sediment control structures meet the approved design criteria 
as set forth by the State. If this condition is not satisfied within 90 days of 
approval, the use permit shall be void. 
 
4.  The applicant shall maintain a mine license from the Virginia Department of 
Mines, Minerals and Energy. If this condition is not satisfied within 90 days of 
approval, the use permit shall be void. 
 
5.  The areas approved for mining under this permit shall be delineated on the 
ground by five-foot-high metal posts at least five inches in diameter and painted 
in alternate one foot stripes of red and white.  These posts shall be so located as 
to clearly define the area in which the mining is permitted. 
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6.  In the event that the Board's approval of this use permit is appealed, all 
conditions requiring action within 90 days will be deemed satisfied if the required 
actions are taken within 90 days of final action on the appeal. 
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7.  The applicant shall comply with the Chesapeake Bay Preservation Act and all 
state and local regulations administered under such act applicable to the 
property, and shall furnish to the Planning Office copies of all reports required by 
such act or regulations. 
 
8.  Hours of operation shall be from 7:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. Monday through 
Friday and 7:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon on Saturday. 
 
9.  No operations of any kind are to be conducted at the site on Sundays, New 
Years Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day or 
Christmas Day. 
 
10.  All means of access to the property shall be from the established entrance 
onto Meadow Road. All truck traffic to the site shall approach from Williamsburg 
Road north on Drybridge Road, then east on Meadow Road. All truck traffic 
leaving the site shall travel west on Meadow Road, then south on Drybridge 
Road to Williamsburg Road. 
 
11.  The applicant shall maintain gates at all entrances to the property.  These 
gates shall be locked at all times, except when authorized representatives of the 
applicant are on the property. 
 
12.  The applicant shall maintain a sign at the entrance to the mining site stating 
the name of the operator, the use permit number, the mine license number, and 
the telephone number of the operator.  The sign shall be 12 square feet in area 
and the letters shall be three inches high. 
 
13.  The applicant shall maintain "No Trespassing" signs every 250 feet along the 
perimeter of the property. The letters shall be three inches high. The applicant 
shall furnish the Chief of Police a letter authorizing the Division of Police to 
enforce the "No Trespassing" regulations, and agreeing to send a representative 
to testify in court as required or requested by the Division of Police. 
 
14.  Standard "Truck Entering Highway" signs shall be maintained on Meadow 
Road on each side of the entrances to the property.  These signs will be placed 
by the County, at the applicant's expense. 
 
15.  The applicant shall maintain a standard stop sign at the entrance to Meadow 
Road. The operator shall cooperate with the Division of Police to enforce this 
stop sign. 
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16.  The applicant shall provide a flagman to control traffic from the site onto the 
public road, with the flagman yielding the right of way to the public road traffic at 
all times.  This flagman will be required whenever the Division of Police deems 
necessary. 
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17.  All roads used in connection with this use permit shall be effectively treated 
with calcium chloride or other wetting agents to eliminate any dust nuisance. The 
operator shall take the necessary steps to prevent mud from being tracked onto 
Meadow Road. The road shall be maintained by washing in addition to sweeping. 
 
18.  The operation shall be so scheduled that trucks will travel at regular intervals 
and not in groups of three or more. 
 
19.  Trucks shall be loaded in a way to prevent overloading or spilling of 
materials of any kind on any public road. 
 
20.  The applicant shall maintain the property, fences, and roads in a safe and 
secure condition indefinitely, or convert the property to some other safe use. 
 
21.  If, in the course of its preliminary investigation or operations, the applicant 
discovers evidence of cultural or historical resources, or an endangered species, 
or a significant habitat, it shall notify appropriate authorities and provide them 
with an opportunity to investigate the site. The applicant shall report the results of 
any such investigation to the Planning Office. 
 
22.  If water wells located on surrounding properties are adversely affected, and 
the extraction operations on this site are suspected as the cause, the effected 
property owners may present to the Board evidence that the extraction operation 
is a contributing factor. After a hearing by the Board, this use permit may be 
revoked or suspended, and the operator may be required to correct the problem. 
 
23.  Open and vertical excavations having a depth of 10 feet or more, for a period 
of more than 30 days, shall be effectively sloped to a 2:1 slope or flatter to 
protect the public safety. 
 
24.  Topsoil shall not be removed from any part of the property outside of the 
area in which mining is authorized.  Sufficient topsoil shall be stockpiled on the 
property for respreading in a layer with five inches of minimum depth. All topsoil 
shall be stockpiled within the authorized mining area and provided with adequate 
erosion control protection. If the site does not yield sufficient topsoil, additional 
topsoil shall be brought to the site to provide the required five-inch layer of cover.  
All topsoil shall be treated with a mixture of seed, fertilizer, and lime as 
recommended by the County after soil tests have been provided to the County. 
 
25.  [AMENDED] All offsite-generated materials deposited on the mining site 
shall be documented in a monthly report to the Director of Planning. The operator 
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shall submit a report stating the origin, nature and quantity of material deposited, 
and certifying that no contaminated or hazardous material was included. The 
material deposited on the site shall be limited to imperishable materials such as 
stone, bricks, tile, sand, gravel, soil, asphalt, concrete and like materials, and 
shall not include any hazardous materials as defined by the Virginia Hazardous 
Waste Management Regulations. The site shall not be filled above the elevation 
of the existing grade of the adjoining property.  
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26.  A superintendent, who shall be personally familiar with all the terms and 
conditions of Section 24-103 of Chapter 24 of the County Code, as well as the 
terms and conditions of this use permit, shall be present at the beginning and 
conclusion of operations each work day to see that all the conditions of the Code 
and this use permit are observed. 
 
27.  [AMENDED] A progress report shall be submitted to the Board on June 30, 
2007.  This progress report must contain information concerning how much 
property has been mined to date of the report, the amount of land left to be 
mined, how much rehabilitation has been performed, when and how the 
remaining amount of land will be rehabilitated, and any other pertinent 
information about the operation that would be helpful to the Board. 
 
28.  [AMENDED] Excavation shall be discontinued by June 30, 2007, and 
restoration accomplished by not later than June 30, 2008, unless a new permit is 
granted by the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 
29.  [AMENDED] The rehabilitation of the property shall take place 
simultaneously with the mining process.  Rehabilitation shall not be considered 
completed until the mined area is covered completely with permanent vegetation. 
The applicant shall submit a complete restoration plan showing finish grading of 
the site. 
 
30.  All drainage and erosion and sediment control measures shall conform to the 
standards and specifications of the Mineral Mining Manual Drainage Handbook.  
Any drainage structures in place prior to October 14, 1992 and which do not 
conform to the Mineral Mining Manual Drainage Handbook may remain in place 
until such time as any reconstruction is required at which time said structures 
shall be brought into conformance with the Mineral Mining Manual Drainage 
Handbook. 
 
31.  [ADDED] The operator shall submit quarterly reports to the Planning 
Department regarding the status of the monitoring wells. 
 
32.  Failure to comply with any of the foregoing conditions shall automatically 
void this permit. 
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Negative:        0 
Absent:        0 
 
The Board granted this use permit because it found the proposed use will be in 
substantial accordance with the general purpose and objectives of Chapter 24 of 
the County Code. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - All right.  November 16 minutes. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I just have one comment on page 37 in the amended 
condition.  I understand what’s being said and it might be okay.  It says, “This 
variance applies only to the lot width,” blah, blah, blah, “for one dwelling only.”   I 
would just like to be more affirmative. When we say only one dwelling can be 
built on the property, I like the way it was worded in the most recent case we 
looked at where it says, “only one dwelling as shown on the plan file,” or if it’s not 
shown, we have to [unintelligible] that part.  Maybe constructed pursuant 
[unintelligible].  That way, it’s crystal clear to everyone from now in perpetuity that 
this is only for one dwelling. 
 
Ms. Harris - What page? 
 
Ms. Dwyer - 37, the amended condition. 
 
Mr. Wright - What condition are you talking about? 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Number 1, the amended one. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - You’re not actually amending the minutes— 
 
Ms. Dwyer - No. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - —your just asking us to draft the condition differently. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Just to make it—Use the wording that you used on 
this case 44-2006, which just starts off by saying, “only one dwelling is 
approved,” and then we can talk about the other part of it. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Okay. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I’m not changing anything, I just want the wording to 
be— 
 
Mr. Wright - How do you want it to be read? 
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Ms. Dwyer - Like the condition in the case we just heard.  It says, 
“Only one dwelling as shown on the plan filled with the application may be 
constructed pursuant to this approval.” 
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Mr. Wright - Yes. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - It’s kind of in there, but I like the wording of the case 
that we just heard today better.   
 
Mr. Nunnally - What line are you on? 
 
Ms. Dwyer - 1655. 
 
Ms. Harris - 1656, too. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Yes.  That whole paragraph. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Again, you’re not proposing that we change the 
minutes. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - No. 
 
Mr. Wright - For future cases, that would be a new type of 
condition, new wording. 
 
Mr. Wright - Are you finished? 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Yes. 
 
Mr. Wright - On page, let’s see, 25.  This case has been appealed 
or will be appealed, I understand.  Is that right? 
 
Ms. Harris - Yes. 
 
Mr. Wright - We don’t have any basis for the decision expressed 
there, any grounds for the decision.   
 
Mr. Kirkland -  I stated— 
 
Mr. Wright - You stated something. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Yes sir. 
 
Mr. Wright - Normally, Ben takes it—I talked about this.  We all 
had discussion on this.  I think we ought to make sure that we have something in 
here for the court to listen to or to consider. 
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Mr. Kirkland - I remember saying “good faith” and all this in my 
motion. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - If that is stated in the discussion and in the motion— 
 
Mr. Wright - Normally, in all of these cases, you say—Let me give 
you an example later on.  Let me get one. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - That’s on 22, Mr. Kirkland, your motion and the 
reasons for it. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - It used to be our practice— 
 
Mr. Wright - Page 29.  Look at line 1234. On that case, you said 
the “Board granted the request because it found the proposed use would be a 
substantial accordance with the general purpose objectives of Chapter 24 of the 
County Code.”  That was the reason of the ground of the approval.  You usually 
give some sort of—Here all you say is “the Board granted the variance subject to 
the following conditions,” and you put the conditions in there and you put the 
vote, but we don’t have any grounds given for the decision. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - It used to be our practice that we did not transcribe 
the discussion at the end of the meeting, all we transcribed was the public 
hearing portion and then we inserted the decisions that were made at the end of 
the meeting.  None of the discussion was transcribed and actually put in the 
minutes.  I think that was why those statements had been done in the past.  I’m 
uncomfortable with putting words in your mouth, basically.  If you’ve made a 
statement of why you’re making the motion you are, then I don’t feel comfortable 
with the staff coming back later and saying this is why they really made the 
motion. 
 
Mr. Wright - Let’s take the last case we just approved. There was 
a motion made and second and it was passed. No basis was given. No basis or 
grounds were given for the motion.  I’m saying at the time we do something, we 
ought to state a basis or a reason for the motion. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - It really needs to be spelled out in the making of the 
motion. 
 
Ms. Harris - I think we generally do.  I think on that last case, we 
got caught in some of the— 
 
Mr. Blankinship - The discussion of the condition. 
 
Ms. Harris - Yes, the discussion.   
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Mr. Wright - No specific basis or grounds for that last motion we 
just made, the last case. 
 
Ms. Harris - Right.  I thought about it at the time. 
 
Mr. Wright - I thought the way you were doing it, you would take 
the sense of the Board.  I’ve been through these things and I’ve written up some 
stuff.  It’s pretty standard.   
 
Mr. Blankinship - We did it two or three months running and nobody 
referred to them, so we stopped doing it. 
 
Mr. Wright - I thought that was good. In other words, we could say 
this is the reason.  Number one would be the basis without reading the whole 
thing.  It’s hard to articulate it at the time you make the motion unless you’ve got 
something in your mind or something before you on these things. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - That’s something that we’ve been struggling with a 
little bit recently. 
 
Mr. Wright - I just was concerned.  This is going before the court. 
What’s the court going to have on this?  It says, “After advertised, motion by Mr. 
Kirkland.”  I seconded it, the Board granted it, the variance to build eight houses.  
“The Board granted the variance subject to the follow conditions.”  It just says 
you gave you the vote. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - In this case, Mr. Kirkland did say the reason. 
 
Ms. Harris - When he made the motion. 
 
Mr. Wright - He said that. 
 
Ms. Harris - He gave his reasons. 
 
Mr. Wright - I’m not sure that’s a full-blown basis, grounds for the 
decision.  If you really want to look at that case, in order to approve it, we would 
have to, we would say what we’ve said before.  You could talk about what I said 
in here, that you would have to refer to—Taken as a whole.  In other words, as it 
stands, it does not, or does interfere with all the benefits and uses of the property 
taken as a whole.  You’ve got to get Cochran in there and you’ve got to get the 
[unintelligible] or the other three points, which were alluded to by the attorney for 
the proponent. He addressed all of those issues. 
 
Ms. Harris - I thought with the ensuing dialogue between you and 
Ms. Dwyer [unintelligible], that— 

December 21, 2006  Board of Zoning Appeals  69



 3148 
3149 
3150 
3151 
3152 
3153 
3154 
3155 
3156 
3157 
3158 
3159 
3160 
3161 
3162 
3163 
3164 
3165 
3166 
3167 
3168 
3169 
3170 
3171 
3172 
3173 
3174 
3175 
3176 
3177 
3178 
3179 
3180 
3181 
3182 
3183 
3184 
3185 
3186 
3187 
3188 
3189 
3190 
3191 
3192 
3193 

Mr. Wright - We covered them. 
 
Ms. Harris - Yeah, you covered them.  You did discuss.  You 
seconded the motion, so I thought that it was taken care of. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - It’s in the record. 
 
Mr. Wright - We discussed it and if that goes up, I guess that’s the 
best you can do.  I just wanted to point that out.  I don’t know how we should 
address that in the future. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - I think in the past it was done because the 
discussions were not transcribed at all.  The transcription ended when the public 
hearing ended and then there was just the statement of what happened after.  
Now that we transcribe the discussion, I’d rather not have us put words in your 
mouth.  I think that’s very helpful, yes. 
 
Mr. Wright - In the future, when I make a motion, I’m going to state 
the basis for my motion. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yes.  I think that’s the best. 
 
Mr. Wright - I’ve been through all this stuff and I’ve got each type 
of situation.  I’m just going to read it off rather than try to make it up at the time. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - I sat down last night, because I think the zoning 
ordinance is so confusing.  It repeats itself and has public policy in with sort of 
the systematic requirements.  I just sat down and outlined it.  I think that’s almost 
what we have to do is look back to the ordinance. Every time we make a 
decision, we should refer to the ordinance and the language in that ordinance as 
a basis for the decision. 
 
Ms. Harris - I agree. 
 
Mr. Wright - For instance, on these use permits—and I’ve been 
through these minutes—basically the sole reason given the basis for approval of 
these use permits, like  [unintelligible], etcetera, I went through.  You put, “The 
proposed use will be in substantial accordance with the general purpose and 
objectives of Chapter 24 of the County Code.”  Arrgh.  What’s that? 
 
Mr. Wright - In other words, we ought to use some language that it 
has traffic conditions or how it affects the adjoining properties and all the stuff 
that’s in the use permit set forth in the Code of why we approve it.  We don’t get 
any appeal from those so it doesn’t cause us any problems.  I had a couple more 
things, if you all will bear with me for a second.  Let’s see, page 46. That’s the 
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same thing. There’s no basis, no grounds for the decision on that one.  I don’t 
know if we even talked about that or not. 
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Mr. Gidley - If there is something given, like on the Scott Road 
case today, Ms. Harris gave reasons for her approval. Therefore, we would let 
that stand on its own, but as you pointed out, on the Yarnell Road case, none 
were given.  In that case, we would come back and put something in so at least 
there’s something in the record.  In this case, Ms. Harris gave her reasons on line 
20, 25.  Therefore, there was no need to come back. 
 
Mr. Wright - I don’t know whether that’s a legal basis for it or not, 
but anyhow.  Page 34, it’s the same thing.  We’ll let that go.  Page 71 and 72.  
I’ve got some confusion in these minutes and I don’t know how it happened. That 
case, they didn’t appear on the one that we heard today?  If you go to page 71—
Well, no, that’s a no-basis one, too. There’s no grounds stated there.  Take a 
look at page 53. I was just confused.  If you go back to page 52, that’s A-54, the 
one we heard today.  You go over to page 53.  We say, “Is there anyone here 
interest in,” then we passed it.  Then it picks up again on 2393. Then we went 
through all of that. Then go back to page 72 and look at line 3278.  I’m confused.  
It looks like— 
 
Mr. Blankinship - That discussion should be moved to page 54. 
 
Mr. Wright - It’s kinda confusing to me because we talked about it 
on page 53 and then on page 72 in line 3278, Ms. Dwyer said, “There are three 
people who have been sitting in the back.” 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Which is when we returned to the case. 
 
Mr. Wright - Huh? 
 
Ms. Dwyer - That’s when we returned to the case, I think. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - If you continue on down to 3308. 
 
Mr. Wright - I don’t know. I’m confused. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - We came back after the break and I think you must 
have— 
 
Mr. Blankinship - We either need to move all of it or none of it. 
 
Mr. Wright - Yes, just to be consistent. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yes. 
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Mr. Wright - It ought to be together. 3240 
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Mr. Blankinship - We’ll correct that. 
 
Mr. Wright - Okay.  Let’s see, I had one more.  All right, page 81 is 
another one we didn’t have any grounds stated, specific grounds stated. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - We all agree to do better on that. 
 
Mr. Wright - It’s all right if nothing happens, but when somebody 
appeals one of these things, I think it makes us look bad.  I don’t know what the 
court hangs its hat on if we don’t have any grounds for the Board’s decision. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - The last case that was appealed, Ms. Harris and I 
went and heard the case in Circuit Court. Almost the whole discussion was— 
 
Mr. Wright - What was the basis of the— 
 
Ms. Dwyer - What facts did the Board rely on and what was the 
basis of the decision, so that— 
 
Mr. Wright - Now, we had a good discussion on this A-44 thing.  
You had some and I had a lot, so I think the court could, from that, get 
something.  I think when we really come down to the decision, we ought to say 
the grounds. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - It should be stated in the motion, I agree. 
 
Mr. Wright - Yes.  With those corrections, I move we approve the 
minutes. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Motion by Mr. Wright that the minutes be approved. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Second. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - Second by Mr. Kirkland.  All in favor say aye. 
 
On a motion by Mr. Wright, seconded by Mr. Kirkland, the Board approved the 
Minutes of the November 16, 2006, Henrico County Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 
Mr. Wright - I’m glad that the Board appealed this case because I 
think we need some clarification.  The only thing is, it’s such a unique case, I 
doubt if we’ll ever have another case like it. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - I hope not. 
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Ms. Harris - I hope not either.   3286 
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Mr. Blankinship - That is a strange set of facts. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Has it already started?  Has the process already 
started? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yes. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - When do you think they will hear the case?  Next 
year? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - I would hope it would be in ’07. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - About mid-year or so? 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yes.  I would wait and see. 
 
Mr. Wright - It’s such a unique case, I don’t know whether we’ll get 
a whole lot of precedent out of it. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - Yes, that is a strange set of facts. 
 
Ms. Dwyer [off mike] - So, we should never approve a case that comes 
before us like the one in [unintelligible].  [Unintelligible] the landowner. 
 
Mr. Kirkland - Either that or tell the people that rules in the case in 
[unintelligible], they can’t [unintelligible] decision. 
 
Mr. Blankinship - When we wrote them the letter and said wait a 
minute, you are in spirit violating this condition now. 
 
Ms. Dwyer - Oh, we couldn’t stop them from [unintelligible]. 
 
Mr. Nunnally - You all excuse me just for a minute.  Ben?  Ben?  
Elizabeth?  We received a note from Mrs. Parker this morning.  It really breaks 
our heart, Ms. Parker, to see you leave.  We wish you best of luck in your 
retirement and we thank you for all the things you’ve done for use since we’ve 
been here. 
 
The Board adjourned until January 25, 2007, at 9:00 a.m. 
 
 
   James W. Nunnally 
 
   Chairman 
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   Benjamin Blankinship, AICP 
 
   Secretary 
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